
           

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S COURT 

JANUARY 12TH, 2016 
9:30 A.M.

             

The Commissioner’s Court of Williamson County, Texas will meet in regular
session in the Commissioner's Courtroom, 710 Main Street, in Georgetown,
Texas to consider the following items:

 

1. Review and approval of minutes.
 

2. Consider noting in minutes any off right-of-way work on any County road done by Road & Bridge Division.
 

3. Hear County Auditor concerning invoices, bills, Quick Check Report, wire transfers and electronic
payments submitted for payment and take appropriate action including, but not limited to approval for
payment provided said items are found by the County Auditor to be legal obligations of the county. 

 

4. Citizen comments. Except when public hearings are scheduled for later in the meeting, this will be the
only opportunity for citizen input. The Court invites comments on any matter affecting the county, whether
on the Agenda or not. Speakers should limit their comments to three minutes. Note that the members of
the Court may not comment at the meeting about matters that are not on the agenda.

 

CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes non-controversial and routine items that the Court may act on with one
single vote. The Judge or a Commissioner may pull any item from the consent agenda in order that the
court discuss and act upon it individually as part of the Regular Agenda.
( Items 5 – 13 )

 

5.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Winn Wilmoth to the Georgetown ESD #8
board with the term commencing effective immediately and continuing thereafter until December 31,
2017.

 

6.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Bennie Piper to the Georgetown ESD #8
board with the term commencing immediately and continuing thereafter until December 31, 2017. 

 

7.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Troy Rodriguez to the Georgetown ESD
#8 board with the term commencing immediately and continuing thereafter until December 31, 2017. 

 

8.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county assets
through auction, including (4) Battery Backups, (2) Chairs, (5) Phones, (7) Monitors, (16) Desktop
Computers, (1) Pallet of Copper & Bass Fittings, (1) Steam Kettle, (3) 3 Drawer Filing Cabinets, (5)
Printers, (1) Recorder, (2) Servers, (2) Powercom UPS, (1) Camcorder, (1) Survey Equipment, (7)
Motorola Radios, (1) Keyboard, (3 ) Modems, (2) TV's, (1) HP Hub, (1) Intel Switch, (5) Misc.
Electronics, (1) Box Misc Cables, (complete list attached) pursuant to Tex. Local Gov't Code §263.152.

 

9.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of county assets through
inter-departmental transfer, including (1) Desk, (see attachment) pursuant to Tex. Local Gov't Code
§263.152.



 

10.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of county assets through
auction, including (1) 2008 Ford Crown Vic, (see attachment) pursuant to Tex. Local Gov't Code
§263.152.

 

11.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Iron Oak subdivision -
Pct 2.

 

12.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for the Mark and Theresa
Hoes Subdivision - Pct 4.

 

13.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Sonterra West Sec
8-J Ph 2 subdivision - Pct 3.

 

REGULAR AGENDA
 

14.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a policy to regulate the time, place and manner of
posting campaign signs at County owned polling places [Election Code §61.003(a-1)].

 

15.   Hear presentation from the Design Workshop consultant team regarding development of River Ranch
County Park.

 

16.   Hear and discuss status report from the District Attorney's Office on the temporary DNA investigator's
review and identification of cases that may have been impacted by certain discrepancies in the FBI
database that was published between 1999 and 2001 and by DNA mixture interpretation protocols
between 1999 and 2015. 

 

17.   Hear and discuss report from the District Attorney's Office relating to the additional Appellate
Prosecutor position that was authorized and approved for fiscal year 2015 2016. 

 

18.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues
update.

 

19.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 1 in the amount of
$3,098.80 for Fencing for Ronald Reagan Boulevard, a Road Bond Project in Commissioner Pct. 3.

 

20.   Discuss and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with MAG Slate Creek, LLC for
proposed ROW needed on SH 29. 

 

21.   Discuss and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Kevin and Susan Langston for
ROW needed on CR 110 South. (PARCEL 31S) 

 

22.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the updated education affiliation
agreements between Williamson County EMS and Austin Community College. 

 

23.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the affiliation agreement between
Williamson County EMS and Texas A&M College of Medicine.

 

24.   Discuss and take action to approve the Sheriff's Forfeiture Fund-State and Local Funds Budget for
Fiscal Year 2015-2016.



 

25.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Fiscal Year 2016 Animal Shelter Donation Fund. 
 

26.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution of the Commissioners Court of
Williamson County, Texas in support of the briefs filed by the County Judges & Commissioners
Association of Texas and the Texas Conference of Urban Counties in relation to Attorney General
Opinion Request No. RQ-0061-KP regarding maintenance obligations pertaining to sidewalks within
publically dedicated right-of-way.

 

27.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFP#1509-011, Hosted Solution Service -
Web Based Benefit Enrollment System to the best proposal, Winston Financial Services, Inc. 

 

28.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving renewal of the Consulting Services
Agreement between Rely Information Systems, LLC and Williamson County, Texas for DBA patch and
upgrade assistance and general Oracle DBA support and maintenance of Williamson County's Oracle
applications, and exemption of the services to be provided under the agreement from the competitive
bidding proposal requirements per the County Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary exemption
for personal services, as set forth under Section 262.024(a)(4) of the Texas Local Government Code.

 

29.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing Purchasing Agent to advertise and
receive bids for RFP/Bid #1512-040, Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail.

 

30.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the HazMat Camera System Project
for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $18,684.

 

31.   Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request – Wireless DVR and Audio/Visual Transmission
Equipment Project
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Wireless DVR and Audio/Visual
Transmission Equipment Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the
amount of $8500.

 

32.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Annual HazMat Monitor
Maintenance Service Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of
$12,000.

 

33.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the PEAC Software Project for
submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $18,000.

 

34.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Radiation Dosimeter Project for
submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $24,800.

 

35.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Portable Radiation Detection
Device Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $5,000.

 

36.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Level A HazMat Suits with Flash
Protection and Suit Tester Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the
amount of $35,400.

 

37.   Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Gemini Analyzer – RAMAN and
FTIR Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $95,000.

 



38.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment for EMS Donations.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367401 EMS Donations $150.00

 

39.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge the
use of EMS Donations.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0540.003670 Use of Donations $150.00

 

40.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment for the Williamson
County EMS share of FY 15 Capital Area Trauma Regional Advisory Council (CATRAC) Trauma
System Funds.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.333220 Payment for other entities $23,314.00

 

41.   Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave
necessity due to unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge
additional expenditures for EMS.

 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0540.004232 Training, Conf., Seminars $4181.00

0100.0540.003107 Medical Equipment < $5000 $4690.00

0100.0540.004234 Training Supplies $1893.00

0100.0540.004350 Printed Materials & Binding $700.00

0100.0540.003010 Computer Equipment < $5000 $3500.00

0100.0540.003001 Small Equipment & Tools < $500 $450.00

0100.0540.004210 Internet/Email SVS $4300.00

0100.0540.003002 Vehicle Equipment < $5000 $3600.00

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION
"The Commissioners Court for Williamson County reserves the right to
adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas
Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultations with Attorney), 551.072
(Deliberations regarding Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations regarding
Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations



regarding Security Devices) and 551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations)."

 

42.   Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code,
Section 551.087:
a) Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
b) Discuss Pearson Road District.
c) Discuss North Woods Road District.
d) Discuss Kaufman Loop.
e) Discuss Project Deliver

 

43.   Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072
Deliberation Regarding Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a
detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in negotiations with third person.)

A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
1. Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by
third parties
a) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for right-of-way for SH 195
b) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for proposed SH 29 project.
c) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop.
d) Discuss possible acquisition of property with endangered species for mitigation purposes.
e) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Sneed Loop
f) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Neenah Blvd.
g) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 119
h) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Tradesman Park.
i) Discuss the acquisition of real property for proposed CR 110 project. (All sections)
j) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 258
k) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Kruger property exchange (3901 CR 130 Hutto, TX)
l) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Arterial H.
m) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
n) Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Williamson County Expo Center.
o) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests on CR 240.
p) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests for the Brushy Creek Trail Project.
q) Discuss the acquisition of real property from Taylor ISD and WILCO Park Foundation for the East
Wilco Park Access Road.
r) Discuss the acquisition of real property from the Andice Cemetery.
s) Discuss accepting the donation of a Water Quality/Detention Pond on Avery Ranch Blvd.
t) Discuss accepting donations of ROW for Busby Lane.
u) Discuss an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Round Rock in regards to Kenney Fort Blvd.

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
1). Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the
County
a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
b) Discuss proposed sale of real estate on Inner Loop
c) Discuss proposed trade of real estate adjacent to Chandler Rd. and CR 130
d) Discuss proposed exchange of property with Mr. Kruger
e) Discuss real estate at 355 Texas Ave.
f) Discuss the proposed sale of portion of county property on Inner Loop opposite Maintenance
Building.
g) Discuss the proposed sale of portion of county property by Jester Annex
h) Discuss the proposed sale of excess right-of-way on Hwy 79 abutting 79 Business Park
i) Discuss abandoning row on CR 359
j) Discuss possible sale of 183 A excess right of way
k) Discuss proposed sale of real estate of Blue Springs Blvd
l) Discuss transfer of ROW on a portion of Williams Drive to the City of Georgetown
m) Discuss abandonment of CR359.



n) Discuss proposed land swap on East Old Settlers Blvd.
o) Discuss proposed sale of an easement to Enterprise Crude Pipeline LLC.

C. Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman.
 

44. Discuss pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other confidential attorney-client legal
matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.071 consultation with attorney.),
including the following:
a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County
b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c) Civil Action No.1:13- CV- 505, Robert Lloyd v. Lisa Birkman, et al, In The United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
d) Employee/personnel related matters
e) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to county
defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the attorney/client
relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
f) Civil Action No. 1:11-cv-907, Sarah Doe et al. v. Jerald Neveleff et al., In the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas Austin Division
g) Cause No. 15-0064-C277, Gordon v. Dollahite et al, In The District Court of Williamson County, Texas,
277th District
h) County Road 241 utility and Right-of-Way Issues and matters;
i) Cause No. D-1-GN-15-000875, Houston v. Bank of America et al, In The District Court of Travis County,
Texas, 345th Judicial District
j) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; In the USDC-WD-Austin
Division
k) Floodplain Regulation Issue
l) Carolyn Barnes v. Austin American Statesman, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-002626, in the 353rd Judicial
District Court of Travis County, Texas
m) Carolyn Barnes, et al v. Texas Attorney General, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-000877, in the 419th
Judicial District Court of Travis County n) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-00679-RP, OCA-Great Houston and
Mallika Das v. State of Texas, Et Al., In the United States District Court for the Western District
o) Notice of Claim – In Re Ray Steven Rose
p) Appeal of IRS Proposed Worker Classification Changes and Proposed Tax Adjustments 2011 -2013;
and Payment of Disputed Employment Taxes Pending Appeal
q) Utility damage claim that occurred on or about 02/19/2014 on CR 488 (Claim # TXPR141360)
r) Claim for overpayment – Timothy Wright
s) Medical subrogation lien settlement offer related to covered person in County’s health benefits plan.
t) Potential claims and litigation against Volkswagen and Audi related to Volkswagen and Audi emission
control systems on diesel engine vehicles in the period 2009 – 2015
u) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop
v) Royger Harris Claim
w) Employment law and regulations relating to court reporters.
x) Jessica Smith claim
y) Claims of Texas Association for Children and Families
z) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. Sally Jewell, et al., In the Western District Court,
Western District of Texas, Austin Division
aa) Legislative changes to firearms laws and possession of firearms on county property
bb) RQ-0061-KP – Request for Opinion Relating to Duty of County to Maintain Sidewalks and legal
obligations relating to Sidewalks

 

45. Deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of
Williamson County officers, directors, employees and/or positions, including but not limited to conducting
deliberation and discussion pertaining to annual reviews of department heads and appointed officials
(Executive Session as per Tex. Gov. Code Section 551.074 – Personnel Matters).

 

REGULAR AGENDA (continued)
 



46. Discuss and take appropriate action regarding economic development.
 

47. Discuss and take appropriate action concerning real estate.
 

48. Discuss and take appropriate action on pending or contemplated litigation, settlement matters and other
confidential attorney-client legal matters, including the following:
a) Litigation or claims or potential litigation or claims against the County or by the County
b) Status Update-Pending Cases or Claims;
c) Civil Action No.1:13- CV- 505, Robert Lloyd v. Lisa Birkman, et al, In The United States District Court
for the Western District of Texas, Austin Division
d) Employee/personnel related matters
e) Other confidential attorney-client matters, including contracts and certain matters related to county
defense issues in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body within the attorney/client
relationship clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.
f) Civil Action No. 1:11-cv-907, Sarah Doe et al. v. Jerald Neveleff et al., In the United States District
Court for the Western District of Texas Austin Division
g) Cause No. 15-0064-C277, Gordon v. Dollahite et al, In The District Court of Williamson County, Texas,
277th District
h) County Road 241 utility and Right-of-Way Issues and matters;
i) Cause No. D-1-GN-15-000875, Houston v. Bank of America et al, In The District Court of Travis County,
Texas, 345th Judicial District
j) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-431; Herman Crisp v. Williamson County, et al; In the USDC-WD-Austin
Division
k) Floodplain Regulation Issue
l) Carolyn Barnes v. Austin American Statesman, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-002626, in the 353rd Judicial
District Court of Travis County, Texas
m) Carolyn Barnes, et al v. Texas Attorney General, et al; Cause # D-1-GN-15-000877, in the 419th
Judicial District Court of Travis County n) Civil Action No. 1:15-cv-00679-RP, OCA-Great Houston and
Mallika Das v. State of Texas, Et Al., In the United States District Court for the Western District
o) Notice of Claim – In Re Ray Steven Rose
p) Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding possible appeal of IRS Proposed Worker
Classification Changes and Proposed Tax Adjustments 2011 -2013; and approval of payment of disputed
employment taxes pending appeal
q) Utility damage claim that occurred on or about 02/19/2014 on CR 488 (Claim # TXPR141360)
r) Claim for overpayment – Timothy Wright
s) Medical subrogation lien settlement offer related to covered person in County’s health benefits plan.
t) Potential claims and litigation against Volkswagen and Audi related to Volkswagen and Audi emission
control systems on diesel engine vehicles in the period 2009 – 2015
u) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop
v) Royger Harris Claim
w) Employment law and regulations relating to court reporters.
x) Jessica Smith claim
y) Claims of Texas Association for Children and Families
z) Civil Action; American Stewards of Liberty, et al. v. Sally Jewell, et al., In the Western District Court,
Western District of Texas, Austin Division
aa) Action regarding legislative changes to firearms laws, to include but not be limited to the adoption
and implementation of regulations and policies relating to the possession of firearms on and within
Williamson County property and facilities.
bb) RQ-0061-KP – Request for Opinion Relating to Duty of County to Maintain Sidewalks and legal
obligations relating to Sidewalks

 

49. Discuss, consider and take appropriate action regarding the appointment, employment, evaluation,
reassignment, duties, discipline and/or dismissal of Williamson County officers, directors or employees,
including but not limited to any necessary action pertaining to conducting annual reviews of department
heads and appointed officials.

 

50. Comments from Commissioners.



 

_________________________ 
Dan A. Gattis, County Judge 

This notice of meeting was posted in the locked box located on the south side of the Williamson County Courthouse,
a place readily accessible to the general public at all times, on the ______ day of ________, 2016 at ________ and
remained posted for at least 72 continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   5.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

ESD 8 appointment of Winn Wilmoth
Submitted For: Valerie Covey  Submitted By: Rachel Rull, Commissioner Pct. #3
Department: Commissioner Pct. #3
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Winn Wilmoth to the Georgetown ESD #8 board with
the term commencing effective immediately and continuing thereafter until December 31, 2017.

Background
This candidate has been interviewed by Commissioner Covey and Judge Gattis

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Rachel Rull Started On: 01/07/2016 09:27 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   6.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

ESD 8 appointment of Bennie Piper
Submitted For: Valerie Covey  Submitted By: Rachel Rull, Commissioner Pct. #3
Department: Commissioner Pct. #3
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Bennie Piper to the Georgetown ESD #8 board with
the term commencing immediately and continuing thereafter until December 31, 2017. 

Background
This candidate has been interviewed by Commissioner Covey and Judge Gattis

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Rachel Rull Started On: 01/07/2016 09:32 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   7.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

ESD 8 appointment of Troy Rodriguez
Submitted For: Valerie Covey  Submitted By: Rachel Rull, Commissioner Pct. #3
Department: Commissioner Pct. #3
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on appointing Troy Rodriguez to the Georgetown ESD #8 board with
the term commencing immediately and continuing thereafter until December 31, 2017. 

Background
This candidate has been interviewed by Commissioner Covey and Judge Gattis.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Rachel Rull Started On: 01/07/2016 09:35 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   8.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Asset Sale
Submitted By: Stacy Partridge, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of various county assets through
auction, including (4) Battery Backups, (2) Chairs, (5) Phones, (7) Monitors, (16) Desktop Computers, (1) Pallet of
Copper & Bass Fittings, (1) Steam Kettle, (3) 3 Drawer Filing Cabinets, (5) Printers, (1) Recorder, (2) Servers, (2)
Powercom UPS, (1) Camcorder, (1) Survey Equipment, (7) Motorola Radios, (1) Keyboard, (3 ) Modems, (2) TV's,
(1) HP Hub, (1) Intel Switch, (5) Misc. Electronics, (1) Box Misc Cables, (complete list attached) pursuant to Tex.
Local Gov't Code §263.152.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Asset Sale

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 01/07/2016 08:20 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Stacy Partridge Started On: 12/29/2015 02:43 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 





































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   9.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Asset Transfer
Submitted By: Stacy Partridge, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of county assets through
inter-departmental transfer, including (1) Desk, (see attachment) pursuant to Tex. Local Gov't Code §263.152.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Asset Transfer

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 01/07/2016 08:25 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Stacy Partridge Started On: 01/06/2016 08:59 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   10.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Vehicle Sale
Submitted By: Stacy Partridge, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing the disposal of county assets through auction,
including (1) 2008 Ford Crown Vic, (see attachment) pursuant to Tex. Local Gov't Code §263.152.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Vehicle Sale

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 01/07/2016 08:26 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Stacy Partridge Started On: 01/06/2016 09:06 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   11.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Iron Oak subdivision - Pct 2
Submitted For: Joe England  Submitted By: Stephen Jones-Meyer, Unified Road

System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Iron Oak subdivision - Pct 2.

Background
This subdivision consists of 23 single family lots and 2,554 feet of new public roads. Roadway and drainage
construction is not yet complete, but a performance bond in the amount of $35,200 has been posted with the
County to cover the cost of the remaining construction. A final plat review fee of $3,629.00 has been paid.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Final Plat - Iron Oak

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Stephen Jones-Meyer Started On: 01/04/2016 12:58 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   12.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for the Mark and Theresa Hoes Subdivision
- Pct 4
Submitted For: Joe England  Submitted By: Stephen Jones-Meyer, Unified Road

System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for the Mark and Theresa Hoes
Subdivision - Pct 4.

Background
This is a simple, one lot replat of for this rural subdivision. There are no new roads. The replat review fee has been
paid. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Replat Mark and Theresa Hoes Subdivision

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Stephen Jones-Meyer Started On: 01/05/2016 10:56 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 







   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   13.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Final Plat Approval - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2 - Pct 3
Submitted For: Joe England  Submitted By: Patrick Hughes, Unified Road System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Consent

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2
subdivision - Pct 3.

Background
This is the next section of the Sonterra West development. It consists of 25 single family lots and 1,204 feet of
roadway. Construction is not yet complete, by fiscal has been posted to cover the cost of the remaining
construction.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 01:11 PM
Form Started By: Patrick Hughes Started On: 01/07/2016 11:12 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 









   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   14.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Elections
Submitted By: Rebecca Clemons, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on a policy to regulate the time, place and manner of posting
campaign signs at County owned polling places [Election Code §61.003(a-1)].

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Elections

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. (Originator) Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Rebecca Clemons Started On: 01/07/2016 09:20 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



Election Code Sec. 61.003.  ELECTIONEERING AND LOITERING NEAR POLLING 
PLACE.  (a)  A person commits an offense if, during the voting period and within 100 feet of an 
outside door through which a voter may enter the building in which a polling place is located, the 
person: 

(1)  loiters;  or 

(2)  electioneers for or against any candidate, measure, or political party. 

(a-1)  The entity that owns or controls a public building being used as a polling place may not, at 
any time during the voting period, prohibit electioneering on the building's premises outside of 
the area described in Subsection (a), but may enact reasonable regulations concerning the time, 
place, and manner of electioneering. 

(b)  In this section: 

(1)  "Electioneering" includes the posting, use, or distribution of political signs or literature. 

(2)  "Voting period" means the period beginning when the polls open for voting and ending when 
the polls close or the last voter has voted, whichever is later. 

(c)  An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor. 

Acts 1985, 69th Leg., ch. 211, Sec. 1, eff. Jan. 1, 1986. 

Amended by:  

Acts 2013, 83rd Leg., R.S., Ch. 235 (H.B. 259), Sec. 1, eff. June 14, 2013. 

Acts 2013, 83rd Leg., R.S., Ch. 235 (H.B. 259), Sec. 2, eff. June 14, 2013. 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   15.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

River Ranch County Park development
Submitted For: Randy Bell  Submitted By: Randy Bell, Parks
Department: Parks
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Hear presentation from the Design Workshop consultant team regarding development of River Ranch County Park.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Randy Bell Started On: 01/06/2016 05:12 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   16.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

DA Status Report Temp DNA Invest
Submitted For: Dan Gattis  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Hear and discuss status report from the District Attorney's Office on the temporary DNA investigator's review and
identification of cases that may have been impacted by certain discrepancies in the FBI database that was
published between 1999 and 2001 and by DNA mixture interpretation protocols between 1999 and 2015. 

Background
The hiring of a temporary DNA investigator was authorized by the Commissioners Court in October of 2015. The
investigator has completed half of his review and Assistant District Attorney John Prezas would like to provide the
Commissioners Court with a status update. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 01/06/2016 05:14 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   17.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Report on App Pros
Submitted For: Dan Gattis  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Hear and discuss report from the District Attorney's Office relating to the additional Appellate Prosecutor position
that was authorized and approved for fiscal year 2015 2016. 

Background
The hiring of a second appellate prosecutor was approved for fiscal year 2015 2016. Assistant District Attorney
John Prezas would like to provide the Commissioners Court with a status update as to such prosecutor's work. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 01/06/2016 05:20 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   18.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Discuss consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastrure projects and issues update
Submitted For: Robert Daigh  Submitted By: Lydia Linden, Unified Road System
Department: Unified Road System
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastructure projects and issues update.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 12/16/2015 10:55 AM
Form Started By: Lydia Linden Started On: 12/16/2015 10:21 AM
Final Approval Date: 12/16/2015 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   19.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

1508-006 Fencing for Ronald Reagan Boulevard Change Order No. 1
Submitted By: Dawn Haggard, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action regarding Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $3,098.80 for
Fencing for Ronald Reagan Boulevard, a Road Bond Project in Commissioner Pct. 3.

Background
This change order provides for balancing the overrun/underrun of Contract Quantities for the Project as a result of
addressing field conditions not accounted for in the original plan quantities. The Right of Way Agreement for the
fencing along the Sullivan Property stated that the County would provide a fence that matches the existing fencing.
To match the existing fence, additional bracing was required that was not shown in the fence standard details in
the plans. The additional bracing included thirteen diagonal supports (kickers) in the radii, twenty-two braces at the
gate installations and four corner braces at the cattle crossing. Also, two additional gates (existing contract item)
will be installed to match the existing conditions on the Sullivan property. The original contract allotted 60 days.
The County added 13 days in this Change Order which brings the total days to 73.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Fencing for Reagan North CO No 1

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
HNTB (Originator) Dawn Haggard 01/07/2016 10:30 AM
Form Started By: Dawn Haggard Started On: 01/06/2016 04:35 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 





C
H

A
N

G
E 

O
R

D
ER

 N
U

M
B

ER
:

1
Pr

oj
ec

t #
15

08
-0

06

 T
A

B
LE

 A
: F

or
ce

 A
cc

ou
nt

 W
or

k 
an

d 
M

at
er

ia
ls

 P
la

ce
d 

in
to

 S
to

ck

LA
B

O
R

H
O

U
R

LY
 R

A
TE

H
O

U
R

LY
 R

A
TE

 T
A

B
LE

 B
:

C
on

tra
ct

 It
em

s:
A

D
D

  o
r 

(D
ED

U
C

T)

IT
EM

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

U
N

IT
U

N
IT

 P
R

IC
E

Q
U

A
N

TI
TY

IT
EM

 C
O

ST
Q

U
A

N
TI

TY
Q

U
A

N
TI

TY
IT

EM
 C

O
ST

O
VE

R
R

U
N

/
U

N
D

ER
R

U
N

3
G

A
TE

 (T
Y 

1)
EA

$2
50

.0
0

11
.0

0
$2

,7
50

.0
0

2.
00

13
.0

0
$3

,2
50

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

4
FO

R
C

E 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

W
O

R
K

D
O

L
$1

.0
0

4,
00

0.
00

$4
,0

00
.0

0
2,

59
8.

80
6,

59
8.

80
$6

,5
98

.8
0

$2
,5

98
.8

0

TO
TA

LS
$6

,7
50

.0
0

$9
,8

48
.8

0
$3

,0
98

.8
0

W
IL

LI
A

M
SO

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

, T
EX

A
S

O
R

IG
IN

A
L 

+ 
PR

EV
IO

U
SL

Y 
R

EV
IS

ED
N

EW



CHANGE ORDER REASON(S) CODE CHART

1. Design Error or Omission 1A. Incorrect PS&E 

1B. Other

2. Differing Site Conditions 2A. Dispute resolution (expense caused by conditions and/or resulting delay)

(unforeseeable) 2B. Unavailable material

2C. New development (conditions changing after PS&E completed)

2D. Environmental remediation

2E. Miscellaneous difference in site conditions (unforeseeable)(Item 9)

2F. Site conditions altered by an act of nature

2G. Unadjusted utility (unforeseeable)

2H. Unacquired Right-of-Way (unforeseeable)

2I. Additional safety needs (unforeseeable)

2J. Other

3. County Convenience 3A. Dispute resolution (not resulting from error in plans or differing site conditions)

3B. Public relations improvement

3C. Implementation of a Value Engineering finding

3D. Achievement of an early project completion

3E. Reduction of future maintenance

3F. Additional work desired by the County

3G. Compliance requirements of new laws and/or policies

3H. Cost savings opportunity discovered during construction

3I. Implementation of improved technology or better process

3J. Price adjustment on finished work (price reduced in exchange for acceptance)

3K. Addition of stock account or material supplied by state provision

3L. Revising safety work/measures desired by the County

3M. Other

4. Third Party Accommodation 4A. Failure of a third party to meet commitment

4B. Third party requested work

4C. Compliance requirements of new laws and/or policies (impacting third party)

4D. Other

5. Contractor Convenience 5A. Contractor exercises option to change the traffic control plan

5B. Contractor requested change in the sequence and/or method of work

5C. Payment for Partnering workshop

5D. Additional safety work/measures desired by the contractor

5E. Other

6. Untimely ROW/Utilities 6A. Right-of-Way not clear (third party responsibility for ROW)

6B. Right-of-Way not clear (County responsibility for ROW)

6C. Utilities not clear

6D. Other



Williamson County Road Bond Program 

Ronald Reagan North 4 Fence 
Williamson County Project No. 1508-006 

Change Order No. 1 

Reason for Change 

This change order provides for balancing the overrun/underrun of Contract Quantities 
for the Project as a result of addressing field conditions not accounted for in the original 
plan quantities.

The Right of Way Agreement for the fencing along the Sullivan Property stated that the 
County would provide a fence that matched the existing fencing.  To match the existing 
fence, additional bracing was required that was not shown in the fence standard details 
in the plans.  The additional bracing included thirteen diagonal supports (kickers) in the 
radii, twenty-two braces at the gate installations and four corner braces at the cattle 
crossing.  The additional bracing will be paid with the existing force account item in the 
contract.

Also, two additional gates (existing contract item) will be installed to match the existing 
conditions on the Sullivan property. 

This Change Order results in a net increase of $3,098.80 to the Contract amount, for an 
adjusted Contract total of $100,067.30. The original Contract amount was $96,968.50. 
As a result of this and all Change Orders to-date, $3,098.80 has been added to the 
Contract, resulting in a 3.2% net increase in the Contract cost.  Thirteen (13) additional 
days will be added to the Contract as a result of this Change Order.   

HNTB Corporation 

James Klotz, P.E. 





   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   20.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

SH 29 Real Estate Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with MAG Slate Creek, LLC for proposed ROW
needed on SH 29. 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
MAG Contract

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 01/07/2016 08:58 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



























   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   21.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

CR 110 South- Real Estate Contract
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take appropriate action on a Real Estate Contract with Kevin and Susan Langston for ROW needed on
CR 110 South. (PARCEL 31S) 

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Langston Contract

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 01/07/2016 09:01 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



00348187.DOC 

REAL ESTATE CONTRACT 
CR 110 Right of Way—Parcel 31S 

 
 
 THIS REAL ESTATE CONTRACT (“Contract”) is made by KEVIN J. LANGSTON and 
SUSAN LANGSTON (referred to in this Contract as “Seller”) and WILLIAMSON COUNTY, 
TEXAS (referred to in this Contract as “Purchaser”), upon the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Contract. 
 

ARTICLE I 
PURCHASE AND SALE 

 
 By this Contract, Seller sells and agrees to convey, and Purchaser purchases and agrees to 
pay for, the tract(s) of land described as follows:  
 

All of that certain 0.565 acre (approximately 24,617 Sq. Ft.) tract of land in the R. 
McNutt Survey, Abstract No. 422, Williamson County, Texas; being more fully 
described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein (Parcel 31S) 

  
together with all and singular the rights and appurtenances pertaining to the property, including 
any right, title and interest of Seller in and to adjacent streets, alleys or rights-of-way (all of such 
real property, rights, and appurtenances being referred to in this Contract as the “Property”), and 
any improvements situated on and attached to the Property described in Exhibit “A” not otherwise 
agreed herein to be retained by Seller, for the consideration and upon and subject to the terms, 
provisions, and conditions set forth below. 
 

ARTICLE II 
PURCHASE PRICE 

 
Purchase Price and Additional Compensation 

 
2.01. The Purchase Price for the Property described in Exhibit “A” shall be the sum of 

SIXTY SEVEN THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED and 00/100 Dollars ($67,700.00). 
 
2.02. As Additional Compensation for any improvements on the Property, and any damage 

or cost of cure for the remaining Property of Seller, Purchaser shall pay the sum of TWO 
THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED FORTY and 00/100 Dollars ($2,340.00).   
 

Payment of Purchase Price and Additional Compensation 
 
 2.02. The Purchase Price and Additional Compensation shall be payable in cash at the 
Closing. 
 



 

 2 

 
ARTICLE III 

 PURCHASER’S OBLIGATIONS 
 

Conditions to Purchaser’s Obligations 
 
 3.01. The obligations of Purchaser hereunder to consummate the transactions 
contemplated hereby are subject to the satisfaction of each of the following conditions (any of 
which may be waived in whole or in part by Purchaser at or prior to the Closing). 
 

Miscellaneous Conditions 
 
 3.02. Seller shall have performed, observed, and complied with all of the covenants, 
agreements, and conditions required by this Contract to be performed, observed, and complied 
with by Seller prior to or as of the closing.  
 

ARTICLE IV 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

OF SELLER 
 
 Seller hereby represents and warrants to Purchaser as follows, which representations and 
warranties shall be deemed made by Seller to Purchaser also as of the Closing Date, to the best of 
Seller’s current actual knowledge: 
 
 (1) There are no parties in possession of any portion of the Property as lessees, tenants 
at sufferance, or trespassers, other than as previously disclosed to Purchaser; 
 
 (2)  Seller has complied with all applicable laws, ordinances, regulations, statutes, rules 
and restrictions relating to the Property, or any part thereof; 
 
 
 The Property herein is being conveyed to Purchaser under threat of condemnation. 
 
 

ARTICLE V 
CLOSING 

Closing Date 
 
 5.01. The Closing shall be held at the office of Capital Title Company on or before 
January 29, 2016, or at such time, date, and place as Seller and Purchaser may agree upon, or 
within 10 days after the completion of any title curative matters if necessary for items as shown on 
the Title Commitment or in the contract (which date is herein referred to as the “Closing Date”). 
 

 



 

 3 

Seller’s Obligations at Closing 
 
 5.02. At the Closing Seller shall: 
 
 (1) Deliver to Purchaser a duly executed and acknowledged Deed conveying good and 
indefeasible title to Williamson County, Texas in fee simple to all of the Property described in 
Exhibit “A”, free and clear of any and all liens and restrictions, except for the following: 
 

(a) General real estate taxes for the year of closing and subsequent years not 
yet due and payable; 

 
(b) Any exceptions approved by Purchaser pursuant to Article III hereof; and 

 
(c) Any exceptions approved by Purchaser in writing. 

 
 The Deed shall be in the form as shown in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated 
herein. 
 
 (2) Deliver to Purchaser a Texas Owner’s Title Policy at Purchaser's sole expense, issued 
by Title Company, in Grantee’s favor in the full amount of the purchase price, insuring 
Purchaser’s contracted interests in and to the Property subject only to those title exceptions listed 
herein, such other exceptions as may be approved in writing by Purchaser, and the standard 
printed exceptions contained in the usual form of Texas Owner’s Title Policy, provided, however: 
 

(a) The boundary and survey exceptions shall be deleted; 
 

(b) The exception as to restrictive covenants shall be endorsed “None of 
Record”, if applicable; and 

 
(c) The exception as to the lien for taxes shall be limited to the year of Closing 

and shall be endorsed “Not Yet Due and Payable”. 
 

(d) Deliver to Purchaser possession of the Property if not previously done. 
 

 
Purchaser’s Obligations at Closing 

 
 5.03. At the Closing, Purchaser shall:  
 

(a) Pay the cash portion of the Purchase Price and Additional Compensation. 
 
 
 

 



 

 4 

Prorations 
 
 5.04. General real estate taxes for the then current year relating to the Property shall be 
prorated as of the Closing Date and shall be adjusted in cash at the closing. If the Closing shall 
occur before the tax rate is fixed for the then current year, the apportionment of taxes shall be 
upon the basis of the tax rate for the next preceding year applied to the latest assessed valuation. 
Agricultural roll-back taxes, if any, shall be paid by Purchaser. 
 

Closing Costs 
 
 5.05. All costs and expenses of closing in consummating the sale and purchase of the 
Property shall be borne and paid as follows: 
 

(1) Owner’s Title Policy and survey to be paid by Purchaser. 
 
 (2) Deed, tax certificates, and title curative matters, if any, paid by Purchaser. 
 

(3) All other closing costs shall be paid by Purchaser. 
 

(4) Attorney’s fees paid by each respectively. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
BREACH BY SELLER 

 
 In the event Seller shall fail to fully and timely perform any of its obligations hereunder or 
shall fail to consummate the sale of the Property for any reason, except Purchaser’s default, 
Purchaser may: (1) enforce specific performance of this Contract; or (2) request that the Escrow 
Deposit, if any, shall be forthwith returned by the title company to Purchaser. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
BREACH BY PURCHASER 

 
In the event Purchaser should fail to consummate the purchase of the Property, the conditions to 
Purchaser’s obligations set forth in Article III having been satisfied and Purchaser being in default 
and Seller not being in default hereunder, Seller shall have the right to receive the Escrow 
Deposit, if any, from the title company, the sum being agreed on as liquidated damages for the 
failure of Purchaser to perform the duties, liabilities, and obligations imposed upon it by the terms 
and provisions of this Contract, and Seller agrees to accept and take this cash payment as its total 
damages and relief and as Seller’s sole remedy hereunder in such event.  If no Escrow Deposit has 
been made then Seller shall receive the amount of $500 as liquidated damages for any failure by 
Purchaser. 
 
 
 



 

 5 

ARTICLE VIII 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Notice 

 
 8.01. Any notice required or permitted to be delivered hereunder shall be deemed received 
when sent by United States mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested, 
addressed to Seller or Purchaser, as the case may be, at the address set forth opposite the signature 
of the party. 
 

Texas Law to Apply 
 
 8.02. This Contract shall be construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Williamson 
County, Texas. 
 

Parties Bound 
 
 8.03. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives, successors and assigns where 
permitted by this Contract. 
 

Legal Construction 
 
 8.04. In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Contract shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, this invalidity, illegality, or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof, and this Contract shall be construed as 
if the invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 
 
 

Prior Agreements Superseded 
 

 8.05. This Contract constitutes the sole and only agreement of the parties and supersedes 
any prior understandings or written or oral agreements between the parties respecting the within 
subject matter. 

Time of Essence 
 
 8.06. Time is of the essence in this Contract. 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 6 

Gender 
 

 8.07. Words of any gender used in this Contract shall be held and construed to include any 
other gender, and words in the singular number shall be held to include the plural, and vice versa, 
unless the context requires otherwise. 
 

Memorandum of Contract 
 
 8.08. Upon request of either party, the parties shall promptly execute a memorandum of 
this Contract suitable for filing of record. 
 

Compliance 
 
 8.09  In accordance with the requirements of Section 20 of the Texas Real Estate License 
Act, Purchaser is hereby advised that it should be furnished with or obtain a policy of title 
insurance or Purchaser should have the abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of 
Purchaser’s own selection. 
 
 Effective Date 
 
 8.10  This Contract shall be effective as of the date it is approved by Williamson County, 
Texas which date is indicated beneath the County Judge’s signature below. 
 

Counterparts 
 

8.11 This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts, which may together 
constitute the Contract.  Signatures transmitted by facsimile or electronic mail may be considered 
effective as originals for purposes of this Contract. 
 

[signature pages follow] 
 
 
 





 

 8 

 
 
 
PURCHASER: 
 
 
WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS 
 
 
 
By: _____________________   Address: 710 Main Street, Suite 101  

Dan A. Gattis            Georgetown, Texas 78626 
County Judge 
                

Date: _________           
       



dchilds
Typewritten Text
A







Parcels 31S 

00346694.DOC 

 DEED 
County Road 110 Right of Way 

 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY 
REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS ANY 
INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS 
FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER 
OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
 That KEVIN J. LANGSTON and SUSAN LANGSTON, hereinafter referred to as 
Grantor, whether one or more, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and 
other good and valuable consideration to Grantor in hand paid by Williamson County, Texas, 
the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and for which no lien is retained, 
either expressed or implied, have this day Sold and by these presents do Grant, Bargain, Sell 
and Convey unto WILLIAMSON COUNTY, TEXAS, all that certain tract or parcel of land 
lying and being situated in the County of Williamson, State of Texas, along with any 
improvements thereon, being more particularly described as follows: 

 
All of that certain 0.565 acre (approximately 24,617 Sq. Ft.) tract of land in the R. 
McNutt Survey, Abstract No. 422, Williamson County, Texas; being more fully 
described by metes and bounds in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
(Parcel 31S)  

 
SAVE AND EXCEPT, HOWEVER, it is expressly understood and agreed that Grantor is 
retaining title to the following improvements located on the property described in said Exhibit 
“A” to wit:  NONE 
 
RESERVATIONS FROM AND EXCEPTIONS TO CONVEYANCE AND WARRANTY:  
 
 Visible and apparent easements not appearing of record; 
 
 Any discrepancies, conflicts, or shortages in area or boundary lines or any 
encroachments or any overlapping of improvements which a current survey would show; 
 
 Easements, restrictions, reservations, covenants, conditions, oil and gas leases, mineral 
severances, and encumbrances for taxes and assessments (other than liens and conveyances) 
presently of record in the Official Public Records of Williamson County, Texas, that affect the 
property, but only to the extent that said items are still valid and in force and effect at this time. 
 

dchilds
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT "B"



 

 2. 

 Grantor reserves all of the oil, gas and other minerals in and under the land herein conveyed but 
waives all rights of ingress and egress to the surface thereof for the purpose of exploring, developing, 
mining or drilling or pumping the same; provided, however, that operations for exploration or recovery 
of any such minerals shall be permissible so long as all surface operations in connection therewith are 
located at a point outside the acquired parcel and upon the condition that none of such operations shall 
be conducted so near the surface of said land as to interfere with the intended use thereof or in any way 
interfere with, jeopardize, or endanger the facilities of Williamson County, Texas or create a hazard to 
the public users thereof; it being intended, however, that nothing in this reservation shall affect the title 
and the rights of Grantee to take and use without additional compensation any, stone, earth, gravel, 
caliche, iron ore, gravel or any other road building material upon, in and under said land for the 
construction and maintenance of CR 110, but shall not be used or exported from the Property for any 
other purpose. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the property herein described and herein conveyed together with 
all and singular the rights and appurtenances thereto in any wise belonging unto Williamson 
County, Texas and its assigns forever; and Grantor does hereby bind itself, its heirs, executors, 
administrators, successors and assigns to Warrant and Forever Defend all and singular the said 
premises herein conveyed unto Williamson County, Texas and its assigns against every person 
whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thereof. 
 
This deed is being delivered in lieu of condemnation. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this instrument is executed on this the        day of                        , 
201      . 
 

[signature pages follow] 
       
 



 

 3. 

  
 
GRANTOR:  
 
 
 
       
Kevin J. Langston 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the ____ day of ______________, 
201    by Kevin J. Langston, in the capacity and for the purposes and consideration recited 
therein. 
 
 
 
                                                   
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 



 

 4. 

GRANTOR: 
 
 
 
       
Susan Langston 
 
 
 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

 
STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the ____ day of ______________, 
201      by Susan Langston, in the capacity and for the purposes and consideration recited 
therein. 
 
 
 
                                                   
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
PREPARED IN THE OFFICE OF: 
     Sheets & Crossfield, P.C. 
     309 East Main 
     Round Rock, Texas 78664 
      
 
GRANTEE’S MAILING ADDRESS: 
     Williamson County, Texas 
     Attn: County Judge 
     710 Main Street, Suite 101 
     Georgetown, Texas 78626 
      
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
      
 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   22.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

WCEMS ACC ALS & BLS Affiliation Agreement update 
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the updated education affiliation agreements between
Williamson County EMS and Austin Community College. 

Background
This is a request from Austin Community College to update the existing agreements approved in commissioner's
court on Sept. 1, 2015 with the addition of one signature from ACC staff.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
WCEMS.ACC.ALS.afiliation.agreement.01.12.2016
WCEMS.ACC.BLS.updated.affiliation.agreement.01.12.2016

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 12/29/2015 09:29 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 

























   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   23.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

WCEMS Texas A&M Clinical Training Affiliation Agreement 2016
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on approving the affiliation agreement between Williamson County
EMS and Texas A&M College of Medicine.

Background
This is a new affiliation agreement with the Texas A&M Health Science Center on behalf of the College of Medicine
to allow ride outs with our staff for EMS Fellowship students. This has been reviewed and approved by Williamson
County legal counsel. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
WCEMS.TexasAM.Affiliation.Agreement.01.12.2016

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 12/30/2015 08:53 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 

























   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   24.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Sheriff's Forfeiture Fund-Chapter 59 Funds
Submitted For: Julie Kiley  Submitted By: Julie Kiley, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss and take action to approve the Sheriff's Forfeiture Fund-State and Local Funds Budget for Fiscal Year
2015-2016.

Background
Per Chapter 59 of the Code of Criminal Procedure when an elected official who receives State and Local Forfeiture
funds does not file for reelection the expenditure of these funds must be approved by the Commissioners Court.
Attached is the requested budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Sheriff's Chapter 59 Forfeited Funds Budget

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Julie Kiley Started On: 01/07/2016 08:56 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



Proposed Budget for Chapter 59 Forfeiture Assets

Object Code Description  Original  Budget  Expenditures 

  Current 

Encumbrances 

 Unencumbered 

Balance 

 Requested 

Budget Explanation

3002 Vehicle Equipment < $5,000  $         15,000.00  $           1,398.47  $         13,601.53 15,000$          

Equipment needs for vehicles purchased 

with forfeited funds.

3004 Ammunition  $           9,999.96  $                       -    $           9,999.96 -$                     

The commissioners court has provided 

ammunition for the qualification  and 

training requirements of each licensed 

officer.  As a result these funds may be 

reallocated to law enforcement equipment 

<$5,000

3006 Office Equipment < $5,000  $           5,000.04  $                       -    $           5,000.04 -$                     

In prior years some office type equipment to 

include digital recorders of cameras has 

been purchased.  This year these items are 

included in line 3008 below.

3008

Law Enforcement Equipment < 

$5,000  $         50,000.04  $               286.40  $        25,070.76  $         24,642.88 125,000$        

This is for items such as surveillance 

equipment, dive and swift water equipment 

and items utilized with narcotics cases.  The 

encumbered amount represents a purchase 

order for the purchase of 12  special 

missions team rifles.

3104 K-9 Division  $         30,000.00  $                       -    $         30,000.00 50,000$          

This line item includes veterinary care, food, 

equipment and the possible purchase of  a 

new k-9

3301 Gasoline  $           5,000.04  $                       -    $           5,000.04 5,000$             

This line item is to purchase gasoline if 

needed to operate equipment in regards to 

firing range repairs and maintenance

3530 Investigative Supplies  $         24,999.96  $         24,999.96 20,000$          

Fingerprinting supplies, Drug testing kits, 

Alcohol/blood/urine testing kits.

4231 Travel  $           9,999.96  $           9,999.96 -$                     

Travel funding is provided in the general 

fund.

4232 Training  $           2,000.00  $           1,610.03  $               389.97 2,000$             

This line item provides for training 

associated with child protective services.

4511 Firing Range Maint. & Repairs  $         50,000.04  $         50,000.04 50,000$          

This line item is to provide funding for 

repairs and maintenance for berms, parking 

surfaces and range security.



Proposed Budget for Chapter 59 Forfeiture Assets

Object Code Description  Original  Budget  Expenditures 

  Current 

Encumbrances 

 Unencumbered 

Balance 

 Requested 

Budget Explanation

4541 Vehicle Repairs  $                       -    $                       -   20,000$          

This line item provides for unanticipated 

repairs associated with vehicles purchased 

utilizing forfeited funds.

4999 Misc.  $         24,999.96  $                       -    $           1,982.93  $         23,017.03 4,774$             

Unanticipated items.  The current 

encumbrance is for  recruiting supplies and 

equipment.

5008

Law Enforcement Equipment > 

$5,000  $       200,000.00  $         44,877.64  $       155,122.36 155,000$        

This is for items such as equipment used in 

the crime lab and at crime scenes.

5302 Firing Range Improvements  $         99,999.96  $                       -    $         99,999.96 150,000$        

This is for items at the Fire arms training 

center to include additional berms, security 

fencing, target systems, etc.

5700 Vehicles > $5,000  $       145,000.00  $                       -    $       145,000.00 -$                     

Originally, this line was to purchase specialty 

vehicles, however, at this time this is not an 

anticipated need.

TOTAL 672,000$             48,173$               27,054$              596,774$             596,774$        



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   25.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Fiscal Year 2016 Animal Shelter Donation Fund Budget 01-12-2016
Submitted For: Melanie Denny  Submitted By: Tanja Pettyjohn, County Auditor
Department: County Auditor
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on the Fiscal Year 2016 Animal Shelter Donation Fund. 

Background
The Animal Shelter donations have increased over the years. Many donations are to be used for a specific purpose.
To aid in accounting for the monies, a new fund was created. The unspent FY 2015 donations will be transferred to
the Animal Shelter Donation Fund. Total unspent FY 2015 funds is $228,320.78. Of that amount, $76,022.81 will be
restricted in fund balance to be used for future shelter expansion. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Animal Shelter Donation Fund Budget

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Tanja Pettyjohn Started On: 01/07/2016 09:13 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



WILLIAMSON COUNTY  
ANIMAL SHELTER DONATION FUND
FISCAL YEAR 2016  EXPENDITURE BUDGET  
 
Object                                    

 
001100 F/T SALARIES                     25,015.54
002010 FICA                             1,913.68 Off-site adoption counselor 
002020 RETIREMENT                       3,204.49
002030 INSURANCE                        8,400.00
003001 SMALL EQUIPMENT & TOOLS < $5,000 1,364.64 Use of Kuranda Beds Donations
003670 USE OF DONATIONS 20,000.00 Use of General Donations
004100 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES            81,098.88 Use of Jane's Fund Donations
004109 SPECIAL NEEDS 2,500.00 Use of ASPCA Donations
004232 TRAINING     2,764.25 Use of S.I.T. Team Donations
004509 FACILITY ENHANCEMENTS 1,051.73 Use of Play Yards Donations
004975 ANIMAL MEDICAL CARE              4,984.76 Use of Heart Worm Fund Donations

TOTAL                                   152,297.97



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   26.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Resolution Sidewalk Maint
Submitted For: Dan Gattis  Submitted By: Hal Hawes, County Judge
Department: County Judge
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on a Resolution of the Commissioners Court of Williamson County,
Texas in support of the briefs filed by the County Judges & Commissioners Association of Texas and the Texas
Conference of Urban Counties in relation to Attorney General Opinion Request No. RQ-0061-KP regarding
maintenance obligations pertaining to sidewalks within publically dedicated right-of-way.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Resolution RE Sidewalk Maintenance AG Opinion Request

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Hal Hawes Started On: 01/06/2016 06:15 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 































   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   27.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

web based benefits system
Submitted By: Kerstin Hancock, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on awarding RFP#1509-011, Hosted Solution Service - Web Based
Benefit Enrollment System to the best proposal, Winston Financial Services, Inc. 

Background
Williamson County is desiring a solution partner to provide a hosted, web-based information, enrollment, and
tracking system for benefits, with the capability of real time reporting and compliance while being educational,
user-friendly, and informative for Williamson County employees. Three (3) proposals were received. After meeting
all mandatory requirments and in depth evaluation by the Evaluation Committee with Criteria ranging from Firm's
qualifications and experience, employer capabilities, reporting, as well as employee capabilities, and upon approval
by the Benefits Committee, Winston Benefits, the highest scoring proposer is recommended to be awarded this
contract due to meeting best the needs of the County. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
score sheet
recommendation letter
Master Services Agreement 
SOW
Certificate of Interested Parties

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Kerstin Hancock Started On: 12/28/2015 11:44 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 









 

December 31, 2015 
 
Kerstin Hancock- Deputy Purchasing Agent 
Williamson County 
901 S. Austin Ave 
Georgetown, TX  78626 
 
Re: Benefit Administration vendor – Winston Benefits 
 
Dear Kerstin: 
This letter is Gallagher’s recommendation to accept the Winston Benefits administration 
platform of Benefit Insite as Williamson County’s system.  Below are the areas of review in 
coming up with our recommendation 
 
Williamson County received bids from 3 organizations; MGM Benefits, Benefit Focus, and 
Winston Benefits.  In reviewing the bidders, we reviewed the firm’s qualifications, employer 
capabilities (including data fees, alerts, ease of use), reporting (standard, ad-hoc, and ACA), 
employee capabilities (open enrollment process, decision tools, forms availability, benefit 
statements) and cost.  Scoring of the bidders was done on a 5 point system for each category, 
with a total of 25 points possible.  Total scoring had Winston with 18 points, Benefit Focus with 
9 and MGM Benefits with 8. 
 
Winston Benefits scored equal to or higher than the other bidders on all categories.  Their 
system was easy to navigate through and was simple to follow. Reporting capabilities were 
good, both on the standard and ad-hoc basis.  Additionally, ACA reporting was included in their 
pricing.  Employee capabilities were clearly better with Winston in the ease of viewing benefits 
on a side by side basis, decision support tools to assist with the open enrollment process, and 
the ability of the system to house the forms needed for various HR functions (evidence of 
insurability, SPDs / SBCs, other HR forms as needed).  Finally, the cost for Winston, 
(approximately $85,000 annually) was within the approved budget of $110,000. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Gary Hysell 
Account Executive 
Gallagher Benefit Services 

























































Controlling
Name of Interested Party

4 Nature of interest (check applicable)
City, State, Country (place of business)

Intermediary

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES 1295FORM
1 of 1

1

OFFICE USE ONLY

2 01/06/2016

Complete Nos. 1 - 4 and 6 if there are interested parties.
Complete Nos. 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6 if there are no interested parties.

Name of business entity filing form, and the city, state and country of the business entity's place
of business.

Winston Financial Services, Inc.
Manasquan, NJ United States
Name of governmental entity or state agency that is a party to the contract for which the form is
being filed.

Provide the identification number used by the governmental entity or state agency to track or identify the contract, and provide a
description of the goods or services to be provided under the contract.

3

Williamson County

Hosted Solution Services - Web Based Benefit Enrollment System & Benefit Administration System (BenefitInsite)
1509-011

2016-1434

01/07/2016

Date Filed:

Date Acknowledged:

Certificate Number:

CERTIFICATION OF FILING

Beam, Meredith Marietta, GA United States X

Bradley, Curry XManasquan, NJ United States

Bradley, Colin XManasquan, NJ United States

Bradley, Robert XManasquan, NJ United States

Signature of officer administering oath

6

AFFIX NOTARY STAMP / SEAL  ABOVE

Signature of authorized agent of contracting business entity

Title of officer administering oath

I swear, or affirm, under penalty of perjury, that the above disclosure is true and correct.

Sworn to and subscribed before me, by the said  _____________________________________, this the ____________ day of ______________,

20________, to certify which, witness my hand and seal of office.

AFFIDAVIT

Printed name of officer administering oath

Check only if there is NO Interested Party.5

Version V1.0.33598www.ethics.state.tx.usForms provided by Texas Ethics Commission



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   28.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Renewal and Exemption for Oracle DBA Consulting Services Agreement 
Submitted For: Max Bricka  Submitted By: Jewel Walker, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on approving renewal of the Consulting Services Agreement
between Rely Information Systems, LLC and Williamson County, Texas for DBA patch and upgrade assistance and
general Oracle DBA support and maintenance of Williamson County's Oracle applications, and exemption of the
services to be provided under the agreement from the competitive bidding proposal requirements per the County
Purchasing Act pursuant to the discretionary exemption for personal services, as set forth under Section
262.024(a)(4) of the Texas Local Government Code.

Background
Rely Information Systems, LLC will provide consulting services, general DBA support and maintenance of
Williamson County's Oracle applications during the period from November 1, 2015 through October 31, 2016. 

Only actual hours will be charged, $88 per hour with an estimated 12 hours per week. Rely Information Systems,
LLC will provide DBA patch and upgrade assistance as requested, $88 per hour for an estimated 80 hours. The
estimated total cost for routine support and patch applications support is $66,176.00.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
Consulting Services Agreement- Rely Information Systems

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 01/07/2016 08:24 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Jewel Walker Started On: 01/04/2016 01:04 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



















   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   29.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail
Submitted By: Brenda Fuller, Purchasing
Department: Purchasing
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on authorizing Purchasing Agent to advertise and receive bids for
RFP/Bid #1512-040, Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail.

Background
Williamson County is seekign a vendor to provide and install a new Jail Intercom and Paging System.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
RFP Packet for 1512-040

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
Purchasing (Originator) Kerstin Hancock 01/07/2016 08:24 AM
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Brenda Fuller Started On: 01/04/2016 03:42 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

SOLICITATION

Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR 
BEFORE:

Feb 3, 2016 3:00:00 PM CST
PROPOSALS WILL BE PUBLICLY 

OPENED: 
Feb 3, 2016 3:00:00 PM CST

Notice is hereby given that sealed Proposals for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be accepted by
the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive 
proposals.  Specifications for this RFP may be obtained by registering at www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
proposal.

All electronic proposals must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

All interested Respondents are invited to submit a Proposal in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Proposal Format, Proposal Specifications, and Definit ions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
RFP. 

Respondents are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire 
RFP.

Electronic proposals are requested, however paper proposals will currently still be 

received, until further notice and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two methods. 
Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive” and will not be accepted or evaluated.

ü If mailed or delivered in person, Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed 
above for this RFP, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

ü Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of 
Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and
note “Sealed Proposal Enclosed. ”

ü Respondent should submit one (1) original; AND one (1) CD OR (1) USB copy of the Proposal.

ü Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline,
and shall return such Proposals unopened to the Respondent.

ü Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party
carriers.

ü Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

ü Proposals will be publicly opened in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however, 
names of Respondents will be read aloud.

ü All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

ü It is the Respondent ’s responsibi l ity to review all documents in BidSync including any addenda that may have been 
added after the document packet was originally released and posted.

ü Any addenda and/or other information relevant to the RFP will be posted on www.bidsync.com. 

ü The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure any interested
Respondent has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional information. 

ü Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked envelopes. 

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 1



5

6

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENT AND GENERAL INFORMATION

WILLIAMSON COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

SOLICITATION

Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail

PROPOSALS MUST BE RECEIVED ON OR 
BEFORE:

Feb 3, 2016 3:00:00 PM CST
PROPOSALS WILL BE PUBLICLY 

OPENED: 
Feb 3, 2016 3:00:00 PM CST

Notice is hereby given that sealed Proposals for the above-mentioned goods and/or services will be accepted by
the Williamson County Purchasing Department. Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive 
proposals.  Specifications for this RFP may be obtained by registering at www.bidsync.com .

Williamson County prefers and requests electronic submittal of this 
proposal.

All electronic proposals must be submitted via:  www.bidsync.com

All interested Respondents are invited to submit a Proposal in accordance with the Instructions and General 
Requirements, Proposal Format, Proposal Specifications, and Definit ions, Terms and Condit ions stated in this
RFP. 

Respondents are strongly encouraged to carefully read this entire 
RFP.

Electronic proposals are requested, however paper proposals will currently still be 

received, until further notice and may be mailed or delivered to the address listed below.

Please note that a complete package must be submitted choosing one of the above two methods. 
Split packages submitted will be considered “unresponsive” and will not be accepted or evaluated.

ü If mailed or delivered in person, Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed 
above for this RFP, to:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

ü Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of 
Respondent, and the Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and
note “Sealed Proposal Enclosed. ”

ü Respondent should submit one (1) original; AND one (1) CD OR (1) USB copy of the Proposal.

ü Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline,
and shall return such Proposals unopened to the Respondent.

ü Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party
carriers.

ü Facsimile transmittals will NOT be accepted.

ü Proposals will be publicly opened in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however, 
names of Respondents will be read aloud.

ü All submitted questions with their answers will be posted and updated on www.bidsync.com.

ü It is the Respondent ’s responsibi l ity to review all documents in BidSync including any addenda that may have been 
added after the document packet was originally released and posted.

ü Any addenda and/or other information relevant to the RFP will be posted on www.bidsync.com. 

ü The Williamson County Purchasing Department takes no responsibility to ensure any interested
Respondent has obtained any outstanding addenda or additional information. 

ü Williamson County will NOT be responsible for unmarked or improperly marked envelopes. 

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 2



55

66

Bid 1512-040
Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail

Bid Number     1512 -040 

Bid Title     Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail 

Bid Start Date  In Held

Bid End Date  Feb 3, 2016 3:00:00 PM CST

Question & Answer 
End Date

 Jan 29, 2016 5:00:00 PM CST

Bid Contact     Brenda Fuller 

 512 -943-1607 

 brendafuller@wilco.org 

Contract Duration    One Time Purchase 

Contract Renewal    Not Applicable   

Prices Good for    30 days 

Pre-Bid Conference   Jan 27, 2016 2:00:00 PM CST
Attendance is optional
Location: 508 South Rock Street 
Georgetown, TX 78626

Bid Comments Intercom and Paging System

Item Response Form

Item     1512-040-01-01 -  please attach all required documents here

Quantity    1 each

Prices are not requested for this item. 

Delivery Location          Williamson County, Texas

No Location Specified

Qty 1 

Description
please attach all required documents here 

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 3



5

6

BID References for 
Bidders Name

List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this BID package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years – OR attach list of 
references with the following details.

Reference 1

Reference 2

Reference 3

Client 
Name:

Location:  

Contact 
Name:

Title 

Phone: Email:  

Contract 
Dates:  

Contract Value:

Scope of 
Work:

Client 
Name:

Location:  

Contact 
Name:

Title:  

Phone: Email:  

Contract 
Dates:  

Contract Value:

Scope of 
Work:

Client 
Name:

Location:  

Contact 
Name:

Title:  

Phone: Email:  

Contract 
Dates:  

Contract Value:

Scope of 
Work:

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 4



5

6

BID References for 
Bidders Name

List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this BID package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years – OR attach list of 
references with the following details.

Reference 1

Reference 2

Reference 3

Client 
Name:

Location:  

Contact 
Name:

Title 

Phone: Email:  

Contract 
Dates:  

Contract Value:

Scope of 
Work:

Client 
Name:

Location:  

Contact 
Name:

Title:  

Phone: Email:  

Contract 
Dates:  

Contract Value:

Scope of 
Work:

Client 
Name:

Location:  

Contact 
Name:

Title:  

Phone: Email:  

Contract 
Dates:  

Contract Value:

Scope of 
Work:

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 5



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 6



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 7



5

6

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental entity Form CIQ

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the Local 
Government Code by a person doing business with the governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the 
local government not later than the 7th business day after the date the person 

becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 
176.006, Local Government Code.

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.006, Local 
Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C misdemeanor.

   Date Received 

OFFICE USE ONLY

1 Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2
Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire.

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the appropriate filing authority not later than 

September 1 of the year for which an activity described in Section 176.006(a), Local Government Code, is pending and 

not later than the 7th business day after the date the originally filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local governmental entity 

who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local governmental entity with respect to 
expenditure of money.

55

66

4
Describe each affiliation or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and who 
appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject of this 

questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE
For vendor or other person doing business with local governmental 

entity

Form CIQ
Page 2

5 Name of local government officer with whom filer has affiliation or business relationship. 
(Complete this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom the filer has 
affiliation or other relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income from the filer 
of the questionnaire?

 Yes  No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receiving or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of the local 
government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local governmental entity?

 Yes  No

C. Is the filer of this questionnaire affiliated with a corporation or other business entity that the local government 
officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

 Yes  No

D. Describe each affiliation or business relationship.

6. Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause conflict of interest:

55

66

55

66

7

Signature of person doing business with the governmental entity Date

Signature not required if completing in BIDSYNC electronically.

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 8



5

6

PROPOSAL AFFIDAVIT

This form must be completed, signed, notarized and returned with Proposal package

The undersigned certi fies that the RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal have been carefully reviewed and are
submi tted as correct and final. R e s p o n d e n t further certi fies and agrees to furnish any and/or all goods and/or
services upon which prices are extended at the price Proposal, and upon the condi t ions contained in the RFP.

STATE OF COUNTY OF 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority , a Notary Public in and for the State of , on this

day personal ly appeared (Name of Signer), who after 

being by me duly sworn, did depose and say:

“ I, (Name of Signer) am a duly authorized officer 

of/agent for

(Name of Respondent) and have been duly authorized

to execute the foregoing on behalf of the
said

(Name of Respondent).

I hereby cert i fy that the foregoing Proposal has not been prepared in collus ion with any other Respondent  or
other person or persons engaged in the same line of business prior to the official opening of this Proposal.
Further, I certi fy that the Respondent is not now, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly
concerned in any pool or agreement or combination, to control the price of services/commodities Proposal on, or
to influence any person or persons to submit a Proposal or not to submit a Proposal thereon. ”

 N a m e  a n d  A d d r e s s  o f  
Respondent:

Fax: Telephone #: 

By: Printed Name: 

Title: 

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by the above-named 

on this the day of , 20

Notary Public in and for 

The State of 

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 9



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 10



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 11



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 12



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 13



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 14



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 15



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 16



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 17



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 18



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 19



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 20



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 21



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 22



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 23



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 24



5

6

Proposer References
List at least (3) companies or governmental agencies, where the same or similar goods and/or services as
contained in this RFP package, were recently provided by Respondent in the last  4 years.

Reference 1

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 2

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Reference 3

Client Name: Location:
City or County

Contact Name: Title:

Phone: Email: Contract Dates: 

Contract Value: $

Scope of Work: 

Cooperative Purchasing Program

Check one of the following options below. A non-affirmative Proposal will in no way 
have a negative impact on the evaluation of the Proposal.

I will offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities during the term of the contract.

I will not offer the quoted prices to all authorized entities.

1. RESPONSE FORMAT AND SUBMISSION

1.1       Introduction

Each Proposal submitted in response to this RFP should clearly reference those numbered sections of this
RFP that require a response. Failure to arrange the Proposal as requested may result in the disqualification of
the Proposal.

Though there is not a page limit for Proposals, to save natural resources including paper, and to allow
Williamson County staff to efficiently evaluate all submitted Proposals, Williamson County requests that
Proposals be orderly, concise, but comprehensive in providing the requested information. Conciseness and
clarity of content are emphasized and encouraged. I f  m a i l e d  o r  d e l i v e r e d  i n  p e r s o n ,  p lease limit
additional, non-requested information.

Please provide your Proposal response using:
3 8 ½” x 11 ” pages, inclusive of any cover letter or supporting materials
4 The least amount of plastic/laminate or other non-recyclable binding materials
5 Single-sided printing

Vague and general Proposals will be considered non-responsive, and may, at County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification. Proposals must be legible and complete. Failure to provide the required information may result
in the disqualification of the Proposal. All pages of the Proposal should be numbered and the Proposal should
contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Proposal.

1.2 Organization of Proposal Contents and Table of Contents

Each Proposal should be submitted with a table of contents that clearly identifies and denotes the location of
each title and subtitle of the Proposal. Additionally, the table of contents should clearly identify and denote the
location of all enclosures of the Proposal. The table of contents should follow the RFP ’s structure as much as
is practical.

Each Proposal should be organized in the manner described below:
(1) Transmittal Letter
(2) Table of Contents
(3) Executive Summary
(4) Proposal Response to Criteria (see Specifications & Cost Proposal, Experience and
Qualifications, References, Implementation Strategy)
(5) Price Sheet
(6) References: Identification of three (3) references within the last 4 years for which the Respondent is
providing or has provided the goods and services (public sector) of the type requested, including the name,
position, and telephone number of a contact person at each entity
(7) Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
(8) Proposal Affidavit and Addenda Acknowledgement
(9) Signature Page
(10) Attach your entities Sample Contract

1.3 Transmittal Letter

The Respondent should submit a Transmittal Letter that provides the following:

A. Name and address of individual or business entity submitting the Proposal;
B. Respondent ’s type of business entity (i.e., Corporation, General Partnership, Limited Partnership, LLC,
etc.);
C. Place of incorporation or organization, if applicable;
D. Name and location of major offices and other facilities that relate to the Respondent ’s
performance under the terms of this RFP;
E. Name, address, business and fax number of the Respondent ’s principal contact person regarding all
contractual matters relating to this RFP;
F. The Respondent ’s Federal Employer Identification Number;
G. A commitment by the Respondent to provide the services required by Williamson County;
H. A statement that the Proposal is valid for ninety (90) calendar days from the deadline for submittal of
Proposals to Williamson County (Any Proposal containing a term of less than ninety (90) calendar days for
acceptance, may at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, be rejected as non- responsive.);
I. If the Proposal being submitted will have an effect on air quality for Williamson County (as it relates to
any state, federal, or voluntary air quality standard), then the Respondent is encouraged

to provide information in narrative indicating the anticipated air quality impact.

The Transmittal Letter should be signed by a person legally authorized to bind the Respondent to the
representations in the Transmittal Letter and Proposal. In the case of a joint Proposal, each party must sign
the Transmittal Letter.

1.4 Executive Summary

The Respondent should provide an Executive Summary of its Proposal that asserts that the Respondent is
providing in its response all of the requirements of this RFP. The Executive Summary must represent a full and
concise summary of the contents of the Proposal
The Executive Summary should not include any information concerning the cost of the Proposal.
The Respondent should identify any services and/or goods that are provided beyond those specifically
requested. If the Respondent is providing services and/or goods that do not meet the specific requirements of
this RFP, but in the opinion of the Respondent are equivalent or superior to those specifically requested, any
such differences should be noted in the Executive Summary. However, the Respondent must realize that failure
to provide the services specifically required may, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, result in
disqualification of the Proposal.
The Respondent also should indicate why it believes that it is the most qualified Respondent to provide the
services described in this RFP. The Successful Respondent must demonstrate extensive experience in and
understanding required in order to carry out the intent of this project. The Respondent should describe in detail
the current and historical experience the Respondent and its subcontractors have that would be relevant to
completing the project. References must contain the name of key contacts and a telephone number. The
Respondent should briefly state why it believes its proposed services and/or goods best meet Williamson
County ’s needs and RFP requirements, and the Respondent also should concisely describe any additional
features, aspects, or advantages of its services and/or goods in any relevant area not covered elsewhere in its
Proposal.

1.5 Conflict of Interest

No public official shall have interest in a contract, in accordance with Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local
Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter 171, as amended. As of January 1, 2006, Respondents are
responsible for complying with Local Government Code Title 5, Subtitle C, Chapter
176. Additional information may be obtained from the Williamson County website at the following link: 
http://www.wilco.org/CountyDepartments/Purchasing/ConflictofInterestDisclosure/tabid/689/language/e n-

US/Default.aspx
Each Respondent must disclose any existing or potential conflict of interest relative to the performance of the
requirements of this RFP. Examples of potential conflicts may include an existing business or personal
relationship between the Respondent, its principal, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with Williamson County or
any other entity or person involved in any way in the project that is the subject of this RFP. Similarly, any
personal or business relationship between the Respondent, the principals, or any affiliate or subcontractor, with
any employee or official of Williamson County or its suppliers must be disclosed. Any such relationship that
might be perceived or represented as a conflict must be disclosed. Failure to disclose any such relationship or
reveal personal relationships with Williamson County employees or officials may be cause for termination.
Williamson County will decide if an actual or perceived conflict should result in Proposal disqualification.
By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFP, all Respondents affirm that they have not given, nor intend
to give, at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special
discount, trip, favor, or service to a Williamson County public servant or any employee, official or representative
of same, in connection with this procurement.
Each Respondent must provide a Conflict of Interest Statement in accordance with this RFP.

1.6 Ethics

The Respondent shall not accept or offer gifts or anything of value nor enter into any business arrangement with
any employee, official or agent of Williamson County. 

1.7 Delivery of Proposals

Williamson County uses BidSync to distribute and receive bids and proposals Bids can be submitted 
electronically through BidSync or by hard copy. Refer to www.bidsync.com for further information.

If mailed or delivered in person , Proposals and Proposal addenda are to be delivered in sealed envelope on 
or before the submittal deadline, as noted in the ‘Public Announcement and General Information ’ listed above for 
this RFP, to:
Williamson County Purchasing Department
Attn: PROPOSAL NAME AND NUMBER
901 South Austin Avenue 
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Williamson County will not accept any Proposals received after the submittal deadline, and shall return such
Proposals unopened to the Respondent.
Williamson County will not accept any responsibility for Proposals being delivered by third party carriers.
Respondent should submit one (1) original, two (2) paper copies and one (1) CD or (1) USB copy of the
Proposal. Proposals will be opened publicly in a manner to avoid public disclosure of contents; however,
names of Respondents will be read aloud.
Respondents should list the Proposal Number, Proposal Name, Name and Address of Respondent, and the 
Date of the Proposal opening on the outside of the box or envelope and note “Sealed Bid Enclosed. ”

2.0 INSTRUCTIONS AND GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

Read this document carefully. Follow all instructions and requirements. You are responsible for
fulfilling all requirements and specifications. Be sure you have a clear understanding of this RFP.

General requirements apply to all advertised RFPs; however, these may be superseded, in whole or in part, by
the Proposal Specifications, Addenda issued as a part of this RFP and Modifications issued as a part
of this RFP. Be sure your Proposal package is complete.

2.1 Ambiguity, Conflict, or other Errors in the RFP

If Respondent discovers any ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in this RFP, Respondent
shall immediately notify Williamson County Purchasing Department of such error in writing and request
modification or clarification of the document. Modifications will be made by issuing Addenda. If the Respondent
fails to notify Williamson County prior to the date and time fixed for submission of Proposals of an error or
ambiguity in the RFP known to Respondent, or an error or ambiguity that reasonably should have been known
to Respondent, then Respondent shall be deemed to have waived the error or ambiguity or its later resolution.

Williamson County may also modify the RFP, no later than 48 hours prior to the date and time fixed for
submission of Proposals, by issuance of an Addendum. All addenda will be numbered consecutively, beginning
with 1.

2.2 Notification of Most Current Address

Respondents in receipt of this RFP shall notify the Williamson County Purchasing Department of any address
changes, contact person changes, and/or telephone number changes no later than 48 hours prior to the date
and time fixed for submission of Proposals.

2.3 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County.

2.4 Signature of Respondent

A Transmittal Letter, which shall be considered an integral part of the Proposal, shall be signed by an individual
who is authorized to bind the Respondent contractually.
If the Respondent is a Corporation or Limited Liability Company, the legal name of the Corporation or Limited
Liability Company shall be provided together with the signature of the officer or officers authorized to sign on
behalf of such entity.
If the Respondent is a General Partnership, the true name of the firm shall be provided with the signature of
each partner authorized to sign.
If the Respondent is a Limited Partnership, the name of the Limited Partner ’s General Partner shall be provided
with the signature of the officer authorized to sign on behalf of the General Partner.
If the Respondent is a Sole Proprietor(s) (individual), each Sole Proprietor(s) shall sign.
If signature is by an agent, other than the Sole Proprietor(s) or an officer of a Corporation, Limited Liability
Company, General Partner or a member of a General Partnership, a power of attorney or equivalent document
must be submitted to the Williamson County Purchasing Department prior to contract award.

2.5 Assumed Business Name

If the Respondent operates business under an Assumed Business Name, the Respondent must have on file
with the Williamson County Clerk a current Assumed Name Certificate and provide a file marked copy of same
prior to contract award.

2.6 Economy of Presentation

Proposals should not contain promotional or display materials, except as they may directly answer in whole or
in part questions contained in the RFP. Such exhibits shall be clearly marked with the applicable reference
number of the question in the RFP. Proposals must address the technical requirements as specified in the
RFP. All questions posed by the RFP must be answered concisely and clearly. Proposals that do not address
each criterion may be, at the sole discretion of Williamson County, rejected and not considered.

2.7 Proposal Obligation

The contents of the RFP, Proposal and any clarification thereof submitted by the Successful Respondent shall
become part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the Contract and any ensuing
agreement.

2.8 Compliance with RFP Specifications

It is intended that this RFP describe the requirements and the response format in sufficient detail to secure
comparable Proposals. Failure to comply with all provisions of the RFP may, at the sole discretion of
Williamson County, result in disqualification.

2.9 Evaluation

Williamson County reserves the right to use all pertinent information (also learned from sources other than
disclosed in the RFP process) that might affect Williamson County ’s judgment as to the appropriateness of an
award to the best evaluated Respondent. This information may be appended to the Proposal evaluation process
results. Information on a Respondent from reliable sources, and not within the Respondent ’s Proposal, may
also be noted and made part of the evaluation file. Williamson County shall have sole discretion for determining
the reliability of the source. Williamson County reserves the right to conduct written and/or oral
discussions/interviews after the Proposal opening. The purpose of such discussions/interviews is to provide
clarification and/or additional information to make an award that is in the best interest of Williamson County.

2.10 Withdrawal of Proposal

The Respondent may withdraw its Proposal by submitting a written request over the signature of an authorized
individual, as described herein above, to the Williamson County Purchasing Department any time prior to the
submission deadline. The Respondent may thereafter submit a new Proposal prior to the deadline. Withdrawal
of a Proposal after the deadline will be subject to written approval of the Williamson County Purchasing Agent.

2.11       Responsibility

It is expected that a Respondent will be able to affirmatively demonstrate Respondent ’s responsibility.
Respondent should be able to meet the following requirements:

a) have adequate financial resources, or the ability to obtain such resources as required;
b) be able to comply with the required or proposed delivery schedule;
c) have a satisfactory record of performance; and
d) be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive an award.

Williamson County may request representation and other information sufficient to determine Respondent's
ability to meet these minimum standards listed above.

2.12Purchase Orders

If required by the Williamson County Purchasing Department, a purchase order(s) may be generated to the
Successful Respondent for goods and/or services. If a purchase order is issued, the purchase order number
must appear on all itemized invoices and/or requests for payment.

2.13 Silence of Specifications

The apparent silence of any RFP specifications as to any detail or to the apparent omission from it of a
detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best practices are to
prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.

2.14 References

Williamson County requires Respondent to supply a list of at least three (3) references within the last 4 years
where like services and/or goods have been supplied by Respondent if Respondent has not done business with
the County within the past five (5) years.

3.0 DEFINITIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

3.1       Definitions

a. “Addenda ” – Means any written or graphic instruments issued by Williamson County prior to the
consideration of Proposals which modify or interpret the Proposal Documents by additions, deletions,
clarifications, or corrections.
b. “Agreement ” – The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an
additional Agreement containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s
Proposal. Such ensuing Agreement shall contain the Proposal Specifications, Terms and Conditions that are
derived from the RFP.
c. “Contract ” – This RFP and the Proposal of the Successful Respondent shall become a contract
between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County once the Successful Respondent ’s Proposal is
properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners Court (sometimes referred to herein as the
“Commissioners Court ”).
d. “Proposal Documents ” – The Legal Notice, RFP including attachments, and any Addenda issued by
Williamson County prior to the consideration of any Proposals.
e. “Proposal ” – Is a complete, properly signed Proposal submitted in accordance with this RFP which is
irrevocable during the specified period for evaluation and acceptance of Proposals.
f. “Respondent ” – A person or entity who submits a Proposal in response to this RFP.
g. “RFP ” – Refers to this document, together with the attachments thereto and any future addenda issued
by Williamson County.
h. “Successful Respondent ” – The responsible Respondent who, in Williamson County ’s sole opinion,
submits the Proposal which is in the best interest of Williamson County, taking into account factors identified
herein and to whom Williamson County intends to award the Contract.

3.2  Terms and Conditions

3.2.1 Venue and Governing Law

Respondent hereby agrees and acknowledges that venue and jurisdiction of any suit, right, or cause of action
arising out of or in connection with this RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall lie exclusively in
either Williamson County, Texas or in the Austin Division of the Western Federal District of Texas, and the
parties hereto expressly consent and submit to such jurisdiction. Furthermore, except to the extent that this
RFP, the Contract and any ensuing Agreement is governed by the laws of the United States, this RFP, the
Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas, excluding, however, its choice of law rules.

3.2.2 Incorporation by Reference and Precedence

The Contract shall be derived from (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s Proposal. In the
event of a dispute under the Contract, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of clarification or
for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) the RFP and its Addenda; and (2) the Respondent ’s
Proposal.

In the event Williamson County requires that an ensuing Agreement be executed following award and a dispute
arises between (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing Agreement, (2) the RFP, and its Addenda; and (3) the
Respondent ’s Proposal, applicable documents will be referred to for the purpose of

Clarification or for additional detail in the following order of precedence: (1) terms and conditions of the ensuing
Agreement and its Addenda, (2) the RFP and its Addenda; and (3) the Respondent ’s Proposal.

3.2.3 Ownership of Proposal

Each Proposal shall become the property of Williamson County upon submittal and will not be returned to
Respondents unless received after the submittal deadline.

3.2.4 Disqualification of Respondent

Upon signing and submittal of the Proposal, a Respondent offering to sell supplies, materials, services, or
equipment to Williamson County certifies that the Respondent has not violated the antitrust laws of this state
codified in Section 15.01, et seq, Business & Commerce Code, or the Federal Antitrust Laws, and has not
communicated directly or indirectly the offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line
of business. Any or all Proposals may be rejected if Williamson County believes that collusion exists among
the Respondents.

3.2.5 Funding

County intends to budget and make sufficient funds available and authorize funds for expenditure to finance the
costs of the Contract. Respondents understand and agree that the County ’s payment of amounts under the
Contract shall be contingent on the County receiving appropriations or other expenditure authority sufficient to
allow the County, in the exercise of
reasonable                                                                                                    administrative discretion, to

make payments under the Contract.

3.2.6 Assignment, Successors and Assigns

The Successful Respondent may not assign, sell, or otherwise transfer the Contract or any other rights or
interests obtained under the Contract without written permission of the Williamson County Commissioners
Court. The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
contracting parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

3.2.7 Implied Requirements

Products and services not specifically described or required in the RFP, but which are necessary to provide the
functional capabilities described by the Respondent, shall be deemed to be implied and included in the
Proposal.

3.2.8 Termination

3.2.8.1 Termination for Cause: Williamson County reserves the right to terminate the Contract and/or any
ensuing Agreement for default if the Successful Respondent breaches any of the RFP Specifications, Terms
and Conditions, including warranties of Respondent, if any, or if the Successful Respondent becomes insolvent
or commits acts of bankruptcy. Such right of termination is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies 
Williamson County may have at law or in equity or as may otherwise be provided herein. Default may be
construed as, but not limited to, failure to deliver the proper goods and/or services within the proper amount of
time, and/or to properly perform any and all other requirements to Williamson County ’s satisfaction, and/or to
meet all other obligations and requirements.

3.2.8.2 Termination for Convenience:  Williamson County may terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing 
Agreement for convenience and without cause or further liability, upon no less than thirty (30) calendar days
written notice to Successful Respondent. Williamson County reserves the right to extend this period if it is in the 
best interest of the County. In the event Williamson County exercises its right to terminate without cause, it is 
understood and agreed that only the amounts due to the Successful Respondent for goods, commodities and/or 
services provided and expenses incurred to and including the date of termination, will be due and payable. No 
penalty will be assessed for Williamson County ’s termination for convenience.

3.2.9 Non-Performance

It is the objective of Williamson County to obtain complete and satisfactory performance of the requirements
set forth herein. In addition to any other remedies available at law, in equity or that may be set out herein,
failure to perform may result in a deduction of payment equal to the amount of the goods

and/or services that were not provided and/or performed to the County ’s satisfaction. In the event of such non-
performance, the County shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to complete the services itself or by
others and/or purchase the goods from other sources. If the County elects to acquire the goods or perform the
services itself or by others, pursuant to the foregoing, the Successful Respondent shall reimburse the County,
within ten (10) calendar days of demand, for all costs incurred by the County (including, without limitation,
applicable, general, and administrative expenses, and field overhead, and the cost of necessary equipment,
materials, and field labor) in correcting the nonperformance which the Successful Respondent fails to meet
pursuant to the requirements set out herein. In the event the Successful Respondent refuses to reimburse the
County as set out in this provision, County shall have the right to deduct such reimbursement amounts from
any amounts that may be then owing or that may become owing in the future to the Successful Respondent.

3.2.10 Proprietary Information and Texas Public Information Act

All material submitted to the County shall become public property and subject to the Texas Public Information
Act upon receipt. If a Respondent does not desire proprietary information in the Proposal to be disclosed, each
page must be clearly identified and marked proprietary at time of submittal or, more preferably, all proprietary
information may be placed in a folder or appendix and be clearly identified and marked as being proprietary. The
County will, to the extent allowed by law, endeavor to protect from public disclosure the information that has
been identified and marked as proprietary. The final decision as to what information must be disclosed, however,
lies with the Texas Attorney General. Failure to clearly identify and mark information as being proprietary as set
forth under this provision will result in all unmarked information being deemed non-proprietary and available to the
public. For all information that has not been clearly identified and marked as proprietary by the Respondent, the
County may choose to place such information on the County ’s website and/or a similar public
database without obtaining any type of prior consent from the Respondent.

To the extent, if any, that any provision in this RFP or in the Respondent ’s Proposal is in conflict with Tex.
Gov ’ t Code 552.001 et seq., as amended (the “Public Information Act ”), the same shall be of no force or effect.  
Furthermore, it is expressly understood and agreed that Williamson County, its officers and employees may
request advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas in regard to the
application of the Public Information Act to any items or data furnished to Williamson County as to whether or
not the same are available to the public. It is further understood that Williamson County ’s officers and
employees shall have the right to rely on the advice, decisions and opinions of the Attorney General, and that
Williamson County, its officers and employees shall have no liability or obligation to any party hereto for the
disclosure to the public, or to any person or persons, of any items or data furnished to Williamson County by a
party hereto, in reliance of any advice, decision or opinion of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.

3.2.11 Right to Audit

Successful Respondent agrees that Williamson County or its duly authorized representatives shall, until the
expiration of three (3) years after termination or expiration of the Contract and/or the ensuing Agreement, have
access to and the right to examine and photocopy any and all books, documents, papers and records of
Successful Respondent, which are directly pertinent to the services to be performed or goods to be delivered for
the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Successful Respondent agrees that
Williamson County shall have access during normal working hours to all necessary facilities and shall be
provided adequate and appropriate work space in order to conduct audits in compliance with the provisions of
this section. Williamson County shall give Successful Respondent reasonable advance notice of intended
audits.

3.2.12 Inspections and Testing

Williamson County reserves the right to inspect and test equipment, supplies, material(s) and    goods for
quality and compliance with this RFP, and ability to meet the needs of the user. Demonstration units must be
available for review. Should the goods or services fail to meet requirements and/or be unavailable for evaluation,
Williamson County can deem the Respondent to be in breach and terminate the Contract and/or any ensuing
Agreement(s).

3.2.13 Proposal Preparation Cost

Cost of developing Proposals is entirely the responsibility of Respondents and shall not be charged to
Williamson County. There is no expressed or implied obligation for Williamson County to reimburse
Respondents for any expense incurred in preparing a Proposal in response to this RFP and Williamson County
will not reimburse Respondents for such expenses.

3.2.14 Indemnification

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL INDEMNIFY , DEFEND AND SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , ITS OFFICIALS ,
EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES FROM AND AGAINST ALL CLAIMS , LIABILITY , AND EXPENSES ,
INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES , ARISING FROM ACTIVITIES OF RESPONDENT , ITS AGENTS, SERVANTS OR

EMPLOYEES , PERFORMED HEREUNDER THAT RESULT FROM THE NEGLIGENT ACT, ERROR , OR OMISSION OF RESPONDENT

OR ANY OF RESPONDENT ’S AGENTS, SERVANTS OR EMPLOYEES , AS WELL AS ALL CLAIMS OF LOSS OR DAMAGE TO THE

RESPONDENT ’S AND W ILLIAMSON COUNTY ’S PROPERTY , EQUIPMENT , AND/OR SUPPLIES .

FURTHERMORE , W ILLIAMSON COUNTY, ITS OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES SHALL NOT BE

LIABLE FOR DAMAGES TO THE SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT ARISING FROM ANY ACT OF ANY THIRD PARTY , INCLUDING ,
BUT NOT BEING LIMITED TO THEFT . SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT FURTHER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND
SAVE HARMLESS W ILLIAMSON COUNTY FROM, ITS OFFICIALS , EMPLOYEES , AGENTS AND AGENTS’ EMPLOYEES

AGAINST ALL CLAIMS OF WHATEVER NATURE ARISING FROM ANY ACCIDENT, INJURY , OR DAMAGE WHATSOEVER

CAUSED TO ANY PERSON OR TO THE PROPERTY OF ANY PERSON OCCURRING IN RELATION TO SUCCESSFUL

RESPONDENT ’S PERFORMANCE OF ANY SERVICES REQUESTED HEREUNDER DURING THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR

ANY ENSUING AGREEMENT.

SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT SHALL TIMELY REPORT ALL CLAIMS , DEMANDS , SUITS , ACTIONS, PROCEEDINGS , LIENS OR
JUDGMENTS TO W ILLIAMSON COUNTY AND SHALL , UPON THE RECEIPT OF ANY CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION,
PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT , NOT LATER THAN THE FIFTEENTH (15 ) DAY OF EACH MONTH ; PROVIDE W ILLIAMSON
COUNTY WITH A WRITTEN REPORT ON EACH SUCH MATTER , SETTING FORTH THE STATUS OF EACH MATTER , THE
SCHEDULE OR PLANNED PROCEEDINGS WITH RESPECT TO EACH MATTER AND THE COOPERATION OR ASSISTANCE, IF ANY,
OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY REQUIRED BY SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT IN THE DEFENSE OF EACH MATTER . SUCCESSFUL
RESPONDENT ’S DUTY TO DEFEND , INDEMNIFY AND HOLD W ILLIAMSON COUNTY HARMLESS SHALL BE ABSOLUTE. IT
SHALL NOT ABATE OR END BY REASON OF THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND/OR ANY ENSUING
AGREEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED BY W ILLIAMSON COUNTY IN WRITING. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THE CONTRACT AND SHALL REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT WITH RESPECT TO
ALL SUCH MATTERS NO MATTER WHEN THEY ARISE.

IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN THE PARTIES AS TO WHETHER A CLAIM , DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING ,
LIEN OR JUDGMENT APPEARS TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED BY OR APPEARS TO HAVE ARISEN OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH

ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF W ILLIAMSON COUNTY , RESPONDENT SHALL NEVER -THE -LESS FULLY DEFEND SUCH CLAIM ,
DEMAND , SUIT , ACTION, PROCEEDING , LIEN OR JUDGMENT UNTIL AND UNLESS

THERE IS A DETERMINATION BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION THAT THE ACTS AND OMISSIONS OF

RESPONDENT ARE NOT AT ISSUE IN THE MATTER.

Successful Respondent's indemnification shall cover, and Successful Respondent agrees to
indemnify Williamson County, in the event Williamson County is found to have been negligent for
having selected Successful Respondent to perform the work described in this request. The provision
by Successful Respondent of insurance shall not limit the liability of Successful Respondent under
the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement.

3.2.15 Waiver of Subrogation
Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent ’s insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever
with regard to subrogation against Williamson County as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or
property damages resulting from the Respondent ’s performance under this Contract and any ensuing
Agreement.

3.2.16 Relationship of the Parties

The Successful Respondent shall be an independent contractor and shall assume all of the rights, obligations,
liabilities, applicable to it as such independent contractor hereunder and any provisions herein which may
appear to give County the right to direct the Successful Respondent as to details of doing work herein covered
or to exercise a measure of control over the work shall be deemed to mean that the Successful Respondent
shall follow the desires of County in the results of the work only. County shall not retain or have the right to
control the Successful Respondent ’s means, methods or details pertaining to the Successful Respondent ’s
performance of the work. County and the Successful Respondent hereby agree and declare that the
Successful Respondent is an independent contractor and as such meets the qualifications of an “Independent
Contractor ’ under Texas Workers Compensation Act, Texas Labor Code, Section 406.141, that the Successful
Respondent is not an employee of County , and that the Successful Respondent and its employees, agents
and sub- contractors shall not be entitled to workers compensation coverage or any other type of insurance
coverage held by County.

3.2.17 Sole Provider

The Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that it shall not be considered a sole provider of the
goods and/or services described herein and that Williamson County may contract with other providers of such
goods and/or services if Williamson County deems, at its sole discretion, that multiple providers of the same
goods and/or services will serve the best interest of Williamson County.

3.2.18 Force Majeure

If the party obligated to perform is prevented from performance by an act of war, order of legal authority, act of
God, or other unavoidable cause not attributable to the fault or negligence of said party, the other party shall
grant such party relief from the performance. The burden of proof for the need of such relief shall rest upon the
party obligated to perform. To obtain release based on force majeure, the party obligated to perform shall file a
written request with the other party.

3.2.19 Severability

If any provision of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by
any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other
provision thereof, but rather the entire RFP, Contract or any ensuing Agreement will be construed as if not
containing the particular invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions, and the rights and obligation of the
parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance therewith. The parties acknowledge that if any provision
of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the
desire and intention of each that such provision be reformed and construed in such a manner that it will, to the
maximum extent practicable, give effect to the intent of this RFP, the Contract or any ensuing Agreement and
be deemed to be validated and enforceable.

3.2.20 Equal Opportunity

Neither party shall discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color,
religion, sex, or national origin.

3.2.21 Notice

Any notice to be given shall be in writing and may be affected by personal delivery or by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the proper party, at the following address:

Williamson County Purchasing Department
Max Bricka, Purchasing Agent (or successor)
901 S Austin Ave.
Georgetown, Texas 78626

Respondent:                                                   Address set out in Respondent ’s Transmittal Letter

Notices given in accordance with this provision shall be effective upon (i ) receipt by the party to which notice is
given, or (ii) on the third (3rd) calendar day following mailing, whichever occurs first.

3.2.22 Sales and Use Tax Exemption

Williamson County is a corporate and politic under the laws of the State of Texas and claims exemption from
sales and use taxes under Texas Tax Code Ann. § 151.309, as amended, and the services and/or goods
subject hereof are being secured for use by Williamson County.

3.2.23 Compliance with Laws

Williamson County and Successful Respondent shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations, and the orders and decrees of any courts or administrative bodies or
tribunals in any matter affecting the performance of the Contract and any ensuing Agreement, including,
without limitation, Workers ’ Compensation laws, salary and wage statutes and regulations, licensing laws and
regulations. When required, the Successful Respondent shall furnish the County with certification of
compliance with said laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, regulations, orders, and decrees above specified.

3.2.24 Incorporation of Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments

All of the Exhibits, Appendices and Attachments referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set forth
verbatim herein.

3.2.25 No Waiver of Immunities

Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal defense available at law or in equity to
Williamson County, its past or present officers, employees, or agents, nor to create any legal rights or claim on
behalf of any third party. Williamson County does not waive, modify, or alter to any extent whatsoever the
availability of the defense of governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas and of the United
States.

3.2.26 No Waiver

The failure or delay of any party to enforce at any time or any period of time any of the provisions of this RFP,
the Contract or any ensuing Agreement shall not constitute a present or future waiver of such provisions nor the
right of either party to enforce each and every provision. Furthermore, no term or provision shall be deemed
waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by the party
claimed to have waived or consented. Any consent by any party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether
expressed or implied, shall not constitute a consent  to ,  waiver of or excuse for any other, different or
subsequent breach.

3.2.27 Current Revenues

The obligations of the parties under the Contract and any ensuing Agreement do not constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness for which County is obligated to levy, pledge, or collect any of taxation. It is
understood and agreed that Williamson County shall have the right to terminate the Contract and any ensuing
Agreement at the end of any Williamson County fiscal year if the governing of Williamson County does not 
appropriate sufficient funds as determined by Williamson County ’s budget for the fiscal year in question.
Williamson County may affect such termination by giving written notice of termination to the Successful
Respondent at the end of its then-current fiscal year.

3.2.28 Binding Effect

This Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their
respective permitted assigns and successors.

3.2.29 Assignment

The Successful Respondent ’s interest and duties hereunder may not be assigned or delegated to a third party
without the express written consent of Williamson County.

3.2.30 General Obligations and Reliance

Successful Respondent shall perform all services and/or provide all goods, as well as those reasonably
inferable and necessary for completion and provision of the services and goods required hereunder. The
Successful Respondent shall keep the County informed of the progress and quality of the services and/or
goods to be provided. Successful Respondent agrees and acknowledges that County is relying on Successful
Respondent's represented expertise and ability to provide the goods and/or services described herein.
Successful Respondent agrees to use its best efforts, skill, judgment, and abilities to perform its obligations in
accordance with the highest standards used in the profession and to further the interests of County in
accordance with County ’s requirements and procedures. Successful Respondent ’s duties as set forth herein
shall at no time be in any way diminished by reason of any approval by the County nor shall the Successful
Respondent be released from any liability by reason of such approval by the County, it being understood that
the County at all times is ultimately relying upon the Successful Respondent ’s skill and knowledge in
performing the services and providing any goods required hereunder.

3.2.31 Contractual Development

The Williamson County Commissioners Court may award the Contract on the basis of the initial Proposals
received, without any further or additional discussions. Therefore, each initial Proposal should contain the
Respondent ’s best terms and offer. The contents of the RFP and the selected Proposal will become an integral
part of the Contract, but may be modified, at Williamson County ’s sole discretion, by provisions of an ensuing
Agreement. Therefore, the Respondent must agree to inclusion in an ensuing Agreement of the Proposal 
Specifications, Terms and Conditions of this RFP. Williamson County may, at its discretion, opt to conduct
further discussions with responsible offerors and request the highest ranked firm ’s Best and Final Offer.

3.2.32 Entire Agreement

The Contract and any ensuing Agreement shall supersede all prior Agreements, written or oral between the
Successful Respondent and County and shall constitute the entire Agreement and understanding between the
parties with respect to the services and/or goods to be provided. Each of the provisions herein shall be binding
upon the parties and may not be waived, modified amended or altered except by writing signed by the
Successful Respondent and County.

3.2.33 Survivability

All applicable agreements that were entered into between Respondent and Williamson County under the terms
and conditions of the Contract and/or any ensuing Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination thereof
for ninety (90) days unless a new contract has been awarded.

3.2.34 Payment
County ’s payment for goods and services shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.
An invoice shall be deemed overdue the 31st day after the later of (1) the date County receives the goods under
the Contract; (2) the date the performance of the service under the Contract is completed; or (3) the date the
Williamson County Auditor receives an invoice for the goods or services. Interest charges for any overdue
payments shall be paid by County in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 2251.025. More
specifically, the rate of interest that shall accrue on a late payment is the rate in effect on September 1 of
County ’s fiscal year in which the payment becomes due. The said rate in effect on September 1 shall be equal 
to the sum of one percent (1%); and (2) the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first day of
July of the preceding fiscal year that does not fall on a Saturday or Sunday.
In the event that an error appears in an invoice submitted by Successful Respondent, County shall notify 
Successful Respondent of the error not later than the twenty first (21 ) day after the date County receives the
invoice. If the error is resolved in favor of Successful Respondent, Successful Respondent
shall be entitled to receive interest on the unpaid balance of the invoice submitted by Successful Respondent
beginning on the date that the payment for the invoice became overdue. If the error is resolved in favor of the
County, Successful Respondent shall submit a corrected invoice that must be paid in accordance within the
time set forth above. The unpaid balance accrues interest as provided by

Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code if the corrected invoice is not paid by the appropriate date. As a
minimum, invoices shall include:
(1) Name, address, and telephone number of Successful Respondent and similar information in the event the
payment is to be made to a different address
(2) County contract, Purchase Order, and/or delivery order number
(3) Identification of items or service as outlined in the Contract
(4) Quantity or quantities, applicable unit prices, total prices, and total amount
(5) Any additional payment information which may be called for by the Contract

Payment inquiries should be directed to the Williamson County Auditor's Office, Accounts
Payable Department:    accountspayable@wilco.org, (512)
943-1500.

3.2.35 Contractual Formation and Ensuing Agreement

The RFP and the Respondent ’s Proposal, when properly accepted by the Williamson County Commissioners
Court, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the Successful Respondent and Williamson County.
The Successful Respondent may be required by Williamson County to sign an additional Agreement
containing terms necessary to ensure compliance with the RFP and Respondent ’s Proposal.

THE RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL SHOULD INCLUDE A SAMPLE CONTRACT, ANY OR
ALL ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OR TERMS AND CONDITIONS AT THE TIME THE
RESPONDENT ’S PROPOSAL IS SUBMMITTED USING SEPARATE ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS FOR THE COUNTY ’S REVIEW AND CONSIDERATION.

3.2.36  Legal Liability Information
The Successful Bidder shall disclose all legal liability information by listing any pending litigation or 
anticipated litigation that your firm is involved in, including but not limited to, potential or actual legal matters 
with private parties and any local, State, Federal or international governmental entities.  Williamson County 

reserves the right to consider legal liability information in the recommendation of any proposed contract to the 
Williamson County Commissioners Court.

3.2.37 Confidentiality
Respondent expressly agrees that it will not use any direct or incidental confidential information that may be 
obtained while working in a governmental setting for its own benefit, and agrees that it will not access 
unauthorized areas or confidential information and it will not disclose any information to unauthorized third 
parties, and will take care to guard the security of the information at all times.

3.2.38  Inclement Weather
In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the County to close for business on the 
date a bid/proposal submission deadline, the proposal closing will automatically be postponed until the next 
business day the County is open.  If inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event causes delays 

in carrier service operations, the County may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project 
to extend the deadline.  It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the County of their interest in the 

project if these conditions are impacting their ability to turn in a submission within the stated deadline.  The 

County reserves the right to make the final judgment call to extend any deadline.  

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with chapter 176 of the 
Local Government Code by a person doing business with the 
governmental entity.

By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the
local government not later than the 7

A person commits an offense if the person violates Section 176.0006, 
Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a Class C 
misdemeanor.

OFFICE USE ONLY

1. Name of person doing business with local governmental entity.

2. Check this box is you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. 

(The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire wi th the appropriate fil ing 
authori ty not later than September 1 of the year for which an activi ty descr ibed in Section 176.006(a), 

Local Government Code, is pending and not later than the 7 th  business day after the date theoriginal ly filed questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate.)

3. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with an employee or contractor of the local 
government entity who makes recommendations to a local government officer of the local 
governmental entity with respect to expenditure of money.

55

66

4. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship with a person who is a local government officer and 
who appoints or employs a local government officer of the local governmental entity that is the subject
of this questionnaire.

55

66

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE                                                         FORM

CIQ

For Respondent or other person doing business with local government entity

1. Name of local government officer with whom fi ler has affi l iation or business relationsh ip.  (Complete 
this section only if the answer to A, B, or C is YES.)

This section, item 5 including subparts A, B, C & D, must be completed for each officer with whom 
the fi ler has affiliat ion or business relationship. Attach additional pages to this Form CIQ as 
necessary.

A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income 
from the filer of the questionnaire?

Yes         No

B. Is the filer of the questionnaire receive or likely to receive taxable income from or at the direction of
the local government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not from the local
government entity?

Yes         No

C. Is the filer of the questionnaire affi l iated with a Corporation or other business entity that the local 
government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership of 10 percent or more?

Yes         No

D. Describe each affiliat ion or business relationship:

55

66

6.   Describe any other affiliation or business relationship that might cause a conflict of interest.

55

66

t h business day after the date the 
person becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed.
See Section 176.006 Local Government Code.

TH

st

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 25



1 
 

Intercom and Paging System for 

Williamson County Jail 

 

General Specifications 

 1.0 Purpose 

Williamson County (“County”) is soliciting a vendor to provide and install a new Jail 
Intercom and Paging System. 

 2.0 General Requirements 
2.1 The current system consists of two equipment racks by two different 

manufacturers.   
2.2 The Telecor System has approximately 250 intercom stations.   
2.3 The TSK system has approximately 225 intercom stations.  
2.4  Responder’s proposals are to replace the complete system.  
2.5  Existing field station wiring may be utilized with proposal.   
2.6 The proposed system should be set up for six new intercom master stations.   
2.7 The proposed system should have the capability to interface with future touch 

screen control computers.   
2.8 The proposed system should allow for easy future expansion. 

 

 3.0 Scope of Work  
3.1   Installation Requirements 
 

3.11 Respondent should provide the necessary installation, termination and 
programming for the new system.  This is to include the testing of existing 
cabling.   

3.12 If it is found that any cable is non-usable and requires additional cable to be 
pulled these charges should be submitted for approval prior to completion of 
work. 

 
 

3.2   Conduit and Cable 
 

3.21 Respondent may utilize all existing conduit and wire for the field devices 
already operation on the Audio system.   

3.22  If it is found that any conduit is non-usable and requires additional cable to 
be pulled these charges should be submitted for approval prior to completion 
of work. 

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 26



2 
 

 
3.3   Warranty 
 

3.31 Respondent should include warranty terms.   
3.32 All system components provided in the proposal must be warrantied. 

 

3.4   Training  
 

3.41  Respondent shall provide training to the Jail for administration, operation and 
maintenance. 

4.0   Price 
 Total System Price should include: 

 
4.1  Materials 
4.2 Design and Engineering 
4.3 Programming 
4.4 Fabrication 
4.5 Installation 
4.6 Testing and Training 

 
 

5.0 Evaluation Criteria 
Responses will be evaluated by using the following criteria: 

 
5.1   Price (40 maximum points) 
 
5.2   Adherence to RFP Criteria (examples: Warranty, Training, Cabling, and Design)  
         (25 maximum points) 
 
5.3   References (10 maximum points) 
 
5.4   Service Capability and Service Response Time (20 maximum points) 
 
5.5   Ability to complete scope of work without subcontractors (5 maximum points) 

 

 
 
 

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 27



3 
 

6.0 Oral Presentations and Interviews: 
 
Responders may be required to make oral presentations/interviews regarding their 
responses.  These presentations/interviews provide an opportunity for the Responder 
to clarify their response to ensure mutual understanding of the services to be 
provided and the responder’s approach to providing these services. 

  

   

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 28



55

66

Question and Answers for Bid #1512-040 - Intercom and Paging System for Williamson 
County Jail 

Overall Bid Questions

There are no questions associated with this bid.   

Bid 1512-040Williamson County, Texas

12/18/2015 1:47 PM p. 29



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   30.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - HazMat Camera System Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the HazMat Camera System Project for submittal
for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $18,684.

Background
The current HazMat Camera (intrinsically safe or explosion proof) is coming to the end of life and needs to be
replaced to sustain the same level of response capability. The newer cameras are smaller, offer more features, and
are less expensive; therefore the request is for 4 complete camera systems to include interactive headsets. This
will provide each team within Williamson County the same level of response capability and provide for greater
situational awareness while in a hazardous atmosphere.

Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/05/2016 09:49 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   31.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request – Wireless DVR Equipment Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request – Wireless DVR and Audio/Visual Transmission Equipment
Project
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Wireless DVR and Audio/Visual Transmission
Equipment Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $8500.

Background
The Wireless DVR and Audio/Visual Transmission Equipment will allow for greater situational awareness,
operational coordination, and responder safety during an incident. This equipment will be utilized in conjunction
with current disparate public safety camera equipment and integrate into a single viewing platform.

Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance.

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/05/2016 10:22 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   32.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Annual HazMat Monitor Maintenance Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Annual HazMat Monitor Maintenance Service
Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $12,000.

Background
Williamson County seeks grant funding annually to provide HazMat monitor maintenance to aid in the sustainment
of grant funded equipment. This funding has proven beneficial in extended product life and response readiness. 

Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:55 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/07/2016 06:28 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   33.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Projejct Funding Request - PEAC Software Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the PEAC Software Project for submittal for FY16
Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $18,000.

Background
Williamson County currently operates PEAC software for HazMat Response and Planning. Due to the software’s
robust capabilities, expansion of the software is being sought to increase access to critical information to frontline
supervisors for HazMat incidents prior to the activation or arrival of the full HazMat Team. 

Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:55 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/07/2016 06:31 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   34.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Fund Project - Radiation Dosimeter Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Radiation Dosimeter Project for submittal for
FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $24,800.

Background
Williamson County currently operates Radiation Dosimeters for HazMat Response. In response to identified gaps in
radiation detection upon initial emergency response, additional dosimeters are being sought for frontline
responders and supervisors to aid in the identification of radiological incident prior to the activation or arrival of the
full HazMat Team. 
Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:55 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/07/2016 06:36 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   35.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Radiation Detection Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Portable Radiation Detection Device Project
for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $5,000.

Background
Williamson County currently operates Portable Radiation Detection Devices for HazMat Response. In response to
identified gaps in radiation detection, additional detectors are being sought to aid in the identification of radiological
incident prior to the activation or arrival of the full HazMat Team. 
Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:55 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/07/2016 06:39 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   36.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Level A HazMat Suits and Suits Tester Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Level A HazMat Suits with Flash Protection
and Suit Tester Project for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $35,400.

Background
Williamson County currently utilizes an array of Level Suits during HazMat Incident Response. Not all suits provide
flash protection leaving responders vulnerable to fire and heat. The additional suits will provide better
standardization of equipment and increase overall safety of responders. The Suit Testers are required to
periodically test the integrity of the suits to ensure maximum allowable shelf life and responder safety.
Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:55 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/07/2016 06:42 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   37.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Gemini Analyzer Project
Submitted For: Jarred Thomas  Submitted By: Jarred Thomas, Emergency

Management
Department: Emergency Management
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider, and take appropriate action on the approval of the Gemini Analyzer – RAMAN and FTIR Project
for submittal for FY16 Homeland Security Grant funding in the amount of $95,000.

Background
Williamson County HazMat Team utilizes a wide array of detection, analyzation, and identification monitors. This
device combines two identification technologies into a single hand-held device which will aid in the speed in which
unknown substances may be identified. 
Note: All applications are made electronically through the e-Grants system. This application does not guaranty that
funding will be approved at the state or regional level. All projects that are awarded funding will be presented to
Commissioner’s Court for final approval and acceptance. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:55 AM
Form Started By: Jarred Thomas Started On: 01/07/2016 06:50 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   38.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

WCEMS Donation
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment for EMS Donations.

Background
This is a $150 anonymous donation to EMS. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.367401 EMS Donations $150.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 01/06/2016 01:46 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   39.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

WCEMS Donation recieved
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge the use of EMS Donations.

Background
Place anonymous donation of $150.00 into EMS line item 003670. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0540.003670 Use of Donations $150.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 01/06/2016 01:54 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   40.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

WCEMS Trauma Distribution Funds from FY 15
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment for the Williamson County EMS share of FY 15
Capital Area Trauma Regional Advisory Council (CATRAC) Trauma System Funds.

Background
CATRAC Trauma Distribution Funds for FY 15, WCEMS participation in the Department of State Health Services
(DSHS) trauma registry. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0000.333220 Payment for other entities $23,314.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 01/06/2016 02:26 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   41.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

WCEMS Trauma Distribution Funds from FY 15
Submitted For: Kenny Schnell  Submitted By: Kenny Schnell, EMS
Department: EMS
Agenda Category: Regular Agenda Items

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss, consider and take appropriate action on an order declaring an emergency and a grave necessity due to
unforeseeable circumstances and approve a budget amendment to acknowledge additional expenditures for EMS.

Background
CATRAC Trauma Distribution funding for FY 15 for participation in the Department of State Health Service trauma
registry. 

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount
0100.0540.004232 Training, Conf., Seminars $4181.00

0100.0540.003107 Medical Equipment < $5000 $4690.00

0100.0540.004234 Training Supplies $1893.00

0100.0540.004350 Printed Materials & Binding $700.00

0100.0540.003010 Computer Equipment < $5000 $3500.00

0100.0540.003001 Small Equipment & Tools < $500 $450.00

0100.0540.004210 Internet/Email SVS $4300.00

0100.0540.003002 Vehicle Equipment < $5000 $3600.00

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:53 AM
Form Started By: Kenny Schnell Started On: 01/06/2016 02:46 PM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   42.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Economic Development
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discussion regarding economic development negotiations pursuant to Texas Government Code, Section 551.087:
a) Business prospect(s) that may locate or expand within Williamson County.
b) Discuss Pearson Road District.
c) Discuss North Woods Road District.
d) Discuss Kaufman Loop.
e) Discuss Project Deliver

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 01/07/2016 09:11 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 



   

Commissioners Court - Regular Session   43.           
Meeting Date: 01/12/2016  

Executive Session
Submitted For: Charlie Crossfield  Submitted By: Charlie Crossfield, Road Bond
Department: Road Bond
Agenda Category: Executive Session

Information
Agenda Item
Discuss real estate matters (EXECUTIVE SESSION as per VTCA Govt. Code sec. 551.072 Deliberation Regarding
Real Estate Property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the
governmental body in negotiations with third person.)

A. Real Estate Owned by Third Parties
1. Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential purchase or lease of property owned by third parties
a) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for right-of-way for SH 195
b) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for proposed SH 29 project.
c) Discuss proposed acquisition of property for SW 183 and SH 29 Loop.
d) Discuss possible acquisition of property with endangered species for mitigation purposes.
e) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Sneed Loop
f) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Neenah Blvd.
g) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 119
h) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Tradesman Park.
i) Discuss the acquisition of real property for proposed CR 110 project. (All sections)
j) Discuss the acquisition of real property: CR 258
k) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Kruger property exchange (3901 CR 130 Hutto, TX)
l) Discuss the acquisition of real property: Arterial H.
m) Discuss the acquisition of real property for County Facilities.
n) Discuss the acquisition of real property for the Williamson County Expo Center.
o) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests on CR 240.
p) Discuss the acquisition of Easement interests for the Brushy Creek Trail Project.
q) Discuss the acquisition of real property from Taylor ISD and WILCO Park Foundation for the East Wilco Park
Access Road.
r) Discuss the acquisition of real property from the Andice Cemetery.
s) Discuss accepting the donation of a Water Quality/Detention Pond on Avery Ranch Blvd.
t) Discuss accepting donations of ROW for Busby Lane.
u) Discuss an Interlocal Agreement with the City of Round Rock in regards to Kenney Fort Blvd.

B. Property or Real Estate owned by Williamson County
1). Preliminary discussions relating to proposed or potential sale or lease of property owned by the County
a) Discuss County owned real estate containing underground water rights and interests.
b) Discuss proposed sale of real estate on Inner Loop
c) Discuss proposed trade of real estate adjacent to Chandler Rd. and CR 130
d) Discuss proposed exchange of property with Mr. Kruger
e) Discuss real estate at 355 Texas Ave.
f) Discuss the proposed sale of portion of county property on Inner Loop opposite Maintenance Building.
g) Discuss the proposed sale of portion of county property by Jester Annex
h) Discuss the proposed sale of excess right-of-way on Hwy 79 abutting 79 Business Park
i) Discuss abandoning row on CR 359
j) Discuss possible sale of 183 A excess right of way
k) Discuss proposed sale of real estate of Blue Springs Blvd
l) Discuss transfer of ROW on a portion of Williams Drive to the City of Georgetown
m) Discuss abandonment of CR359.
n) Discuss proposed land swap on East Old Settlers Blvd.
o) Discuss proposed sale of an easement to Enterprise Crude Pipeline LLC.



C. Consider intervention in lawsuit regarding de-listing of Bone Cave harvestman.

Background

Fiscal Impact

From/To Acct No. Description Amount

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review
Inbox Reviewed By Date
County Judge Exec Asst. Wendy Coco 01/07/2016 09:54 AM
Form Started By: Charlie Crossfield Started On: 01/07/2016 09:08 AM
Final Approval Date: 01/07/2016 


	Agenda
	ESD 8 appointment of Winn Wilmoth
	ESD 8 appointment of Bennie Piper
	ESD 8 appointment of Troy Rodriguez
	Asset Sale
	ATT_Asset Sale
	Asset Transfer
	ATT_Asset Transfer
	Vehicle Sale
	ATT_Vehicle Sale
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the final plat for the Iron Oak subdivision - Pct 2
	ATT_Final Plat - Iron Oak
	HPSC0625
	HPSC0627
	HPSC0628

	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on approval of the revised plat for the Mark and Theresa Hoes Subdivision - Pct 4
	ATT_Replat Mark and Theresa Hoes Subdivision
	2015-12-16 - Replat - Mark and Theresa Hoes Lot 1
	2015-12-16 - Replat - Mark and Theresa Hoes Lot 1002

	Final Plat Approval - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2 - Pct 3
	ATT_Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2
	2016-01-07 - Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2001
	2016-01-07 - Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2002
	2016-01-07 - Final Plat - Sonterra West Sec 8-J Ph 2003

	Elections
	ATT_Elections
	River Ranch County Park development
	DA Status Report Temp DNA Invest
	Report on App Pros
	Discuss consider and take appropriate action on the Department of Infrastrure projects and issues update
	1508-006 Fencing for Ronald Reagan Boulevard Change Order No. 1
	ATT_Fencing for Reagan North CO No 1
	SH 29 Real Estate Contract
	ATT_MAG Contract
	CR 110 South-  Real Estate Contract
	ATT_Langston Contract
	WCEMS ACC ALS & BLS Affiliation Agreement update 
	ATT_WCEMS.ACC.ALS.afiliation.agreement.01.12.2016
	ATT_WCEMS.ACC.BLS.updated.affiliation.agreement.01.12.2016
	WCEMS Texas A&M Clinical Training Affiliation Agreement 2016
	ATT_WCEMS.TexasAM.Affiliation.Agreement.01.12.2016
	Sheriff's Forfeiture Fund-Chapter 59 Funds
	ATT_Sheriff's Chapter 59 Forfeited Funds Budget
	Fiscal Year 2016 Animal Shelter Donation Fund Budget 01-12-2016
	ATT_Animal Shelter Donation Fund Budget
	Resolution Sidewalk Maint
	ATT_Resolution RE Sidewalk Maintenance AG Opinion Request
	web based benefits system
	ATT_score sheet
	ATT_recommendation letter
	ATT_Master Services Agreement 
	ATT_SOW
	ATT_Certificate of Interested Parties
	Certificate of Interested Parties (1) notarized form
	Form 1295 Certificate 100000487

	Renewal and Exemption for Oracle DBA Consulting Services Agreement 
	ATT_Consulting Services Agreement- Rely Information Systems
	Intercom and Paging System for Williamson County Jail
	ATT_RFP Packet for 1512-040
	Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - HazMat Camera System Project
	Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request _ Wireless DVR Equipment Project
	Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Annual HazMat Monitor Maintenance Project
	Homeland Security Grant Projejct Funding Request - PEAC Software Project
	Homeland Security Grant Fund Project - Radiation Dosimeter Project
	Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Radiation Detection Project
	Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Level A HazMat Suits and Suits Tester Project
	Homeland Security Grant Project Funding Request - Gemini Analyzer Project
	WCEMS Donation
	WCEMS Donation recieved
	WCEMS Trauma Distribution Funds from FY 15
	WCEMS Trauma Distribution Funds from FY 15
	Economic Development
	Executive Session

